
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 

Southern Area 
Planning Committee 

 
 
 
Date: 
 

Tuesday 4 July 2023 

Time: 
 

5.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Main Hall, Crosfield Hall, Broadwater Road, Romsey, Hampshire, 
SO51 8GL 

 
 
For further information or enquiries please contact: 
Caroline Lovelock - 01264 368000 
clovelock@testvalley.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Legal and Democratic Service 
Test Valley Borough Council, 

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, 
Andover, Hampshire, 

SP10 3AJ 
www.testvalley.gov.uk 

 
 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME 
If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting. 
 
 

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


 
 

 
Membership of Southern Area Planning Committee 

 
MEMBER  WARD 
 
Councillor M Cooper (Chairman) Romsey Tadburn 

Councillor A Dowden (Vice-Chairman) Valley Park 

Councillor G Bailey Blackwater 

Councillor P Bundy Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams 

Councillor J Burnage Romsey Cupernham 

Councillor C Dowden Valley Park 

Councillor K Dunleavey Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams 

Councillor A Ford North Baddesley 

Councillor S Gidley Romsey Abbey 

Councillor I Jeffrey Mid Test 

Councillor A Johnston Mid Test 

Councillor J Parker Romsey Tadburn 

Councillor A Warnes North Baddesley 

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023



 
 

 
Southern Area Planning Committee 

 
Tuesday 4 July 2023 

 
AGENDA 

 
The order of these items may change as a result of members 

of the public wishing to speak 
 
  
1   Apologies 

 
 

 
2   Public Participation 

 
 

 
3   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

 
4   Urgent Items 

 
 

 
5   Minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2023 

 
 

 
6   Information Notes 

 
4 - 9 

 
7   22/03317/FULLS - 03.01.2023 

 
10 - 41 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: Barns at Glebe Farm, Salisbury Road, Sherfield 
English, SO51 6FL 
SHERFIELD ENGLISH 
CASE OFFICER: Sarah Barter 
 

 

 
8   23/00867/FULLS - 29.03.2023 

 
42 - 62 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE) 
SITE: Pinns Farm, Foxes Lane, West Wellow, SO51 6DS 
WELLOW 
CASE OFFICER: Katie Savage 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023



 

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

INFORMATION NOTES 
 
 

Availability of Background Papers 
 
Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the 
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter.  Requests to inspect the 
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to 
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager.  Although there 
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed 
on the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to 
the Head of Planning and Building. 
 
Reasons for Committee Consideration 
 
The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in 
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning 
Committees and this will happen if any of the following reasons apply: 
 

(a) Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft 
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where 
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended 
for approval. 
 

(b) Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing, 
with reasons and within the Application Publicity Expiry Date, that they be 
submitted to Committee. A Member can withdraw this request at any time 
prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination under 
delegated powers. 

 
(c) Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in 

which the Council holds an interest, for its own developments except for the 
approval of minor developments. 
 

(d) Applications where the Head of Planning and Building Services recommends 
refusal of an application solely on the basis of failure to achieve nutrient 
neutrality where a Ward Member requests in writing, with reasons, within 72 
hours of notification of the recommendation for refusal that they be submitted 
to Committee for determination. A Member can withdraw this request at any 
time prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination 
under delegated powers. 

 
(e) To determine applications (excluding applications for advertisement consent, 

certificates of lawfulness, listed building consent, and applications resulting 
from the withdrawal by condition of domestic permitted development rights; 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 4

ITEM 6



 

 
 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as 
amended) on which a material planning objection(s) has been received within 
the Application Publicity Expiry Date and which cannot be resolved by 
negotiation or through the imposition of conditions and where the officer’s 
recommendation is for approval, following consultation with the Ward 
Members, the latter having the right to request that the application be 
reported to Committee for decision. 

 
Public Speaking at the Meeting 
 
The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public, 
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on 
applications.  Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building 
Services or from Democratic Services at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, Weyhill 
Road, Andover.  Copies are usually sent to all those who have made 
representations.  Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Democratic Services 
within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to address the 
Committee. 
 
Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors on the Area 
Committee who have personal interests or where a Member has pre-determined 
his/her position on the relevant application, three minutes for the Parish Council, 
three minutes for all objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for 
the applicant/agent and relevant Ward Members who are not Committee Members 
will have a maximum of five minutes.  Where there are multiple supporters or 
multiple objectors wishing to speak the Chairman may limit individual speakers to 
less than three minutes with a view to accommodating multiple speakers within the 
three minute time limit.  Speakers may be asked questions by the Members of the 
Committee, but are not permitted to ask questions of others or to join in the debate.  
Speakers are not permitted to circulate or display plans, photographs, illustrations or 
textual material during the Committee meeting as any such material should be sent 
to the Members and officers in advance of the meeting to allow them time to 
consider the content. 
 
Content of Officer’s Report 
 
It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the 
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with 
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a 
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted.  However, the 
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations 
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full 
response must ask to consult the application file. 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 5



 

 
Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions 
 
The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time 
the report was prepared.  A different recommendation may be made at the meeting 
should circumstances change and the officer’s recommendations may not be 
accepted by the Committee. 
 
In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the 
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice 
Chairman.  Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Rules of Procedure.  A binding decision is made only when the Committee has 
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and, 
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the 
Council. 
 
Conditions and Reasons for Refusal 
 
Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during 
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application 
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application 
recommended for refusal.  In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is 
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being 
made. 
 
Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation 
 
For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to 
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section 
106 agreement).  The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land, 
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a 
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority. 
 
New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure 
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new 
development and its future occupants.  Typically, such requirements include 
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing 
fields and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport. 
 
Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to 
grant permission subject to the listed conditions.  However, it should be noted that 
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning 
application determination date to allow the application to be issued.  If this does not 
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within 
the timescale set to deal with the application. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 6



 

Deferred Applications 
 
Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows: 
 
* The applicant may choose to withdraw the application.  No further action 

would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed. 
 
* Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or 

amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for 
consultation on amendments. 

 
* The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments. 
 
* The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the 

proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.  
These site visits are not public meetings. 

 
Visual Display of Plans and Photographs 
 
Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its 
surroundings.  The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from 
Ordnance Survey and to scale.  The other plans are not a complete copy of the 
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced 
from large size paper plans.  If further information is needed or these plans are 
unclear please refer to the submitted application on the Council’s website.  Plans 
displayed at the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to 
the written reports. 
 
Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the 
officers usually take these.  Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or 
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers. 
 
Human Rights 
 
The European Convention on Human Rights” (“ECHR”) was brought into English 
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000. 
 
The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR. 
 
There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions: 
 
* Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property. 
 
* Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life. 
 
It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in 
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these 
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and 
must go no further than necessary. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 7



 

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and 
against competing private interests.  Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in 
the decision making processes of the Committee.  However, Members must 
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all 
planning applications and enforcement action. 
 
The  Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 and 
Environment Act 2021 
 
The Council has a duty under the Environment Act 2021, from the 1st January 2023, 
to ensure consideration is given to what can be done to conserve and enhance 
biodiversity through the exercise of its functions, agree policies and specific 
objectives based on those considerations and to act to deliver these policies and 
achieve objectives. 
 
Previously the Council had a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its 
functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those 
functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity". 
 
It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process 
leading up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan.  Further 
regard is had in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the 
biodiversity checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental 
Statements and any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on 
biodiversity aspects of the proposals.  Provided any recommendations arising from 
these processes are secured either by condition or, where appropriate, legal 
Obligation as part of any grant of planning permission (or included in reasons for 
refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure that biodiversity interest 
has been conserved and enhanced, as far as practically possible, will be considered 
to have been met. 
 
Other Legislation 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan for the 
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016), and ‘made’ 
Neighbourhood Plans.  Material considerations are defined by Case Law and 
includes, amongst other things, draft Development Plan Documents (DPD), 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other relevant guidance including 
Development Briefs, Government advice, amenity considerations, crime and 
community safety, traffic generation and safety. 

In July 2021 the Government published a revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous NPPF 
published in 2018.  The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning 
decisions.   

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 8



 

So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Decisions 
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This does not 
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision 
making.  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date 
development plan, permission should not usually be granted.  Local planning 
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan, 
but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed.   

For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
means: 
 

• Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development 
plan without delay; or 

• Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting 
permission unless: 
o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or assets 

of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or  

o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the revised 
NPPF when taken as a whole.   

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were 
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF.  Due weight should be given to 
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the 
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given).   

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 9



 
 
 
 
 APPLICATION NO. 22/03317/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 03.01.2023 
 APPLICANT Osman Homes 
 SITE Barns at Glebe Farm , Salisbury Road, Sherfield 

English, SO51 6FL,  SHERFIELD ENGLISH  
 PROPOSAL Demolish agricultural buildings and associated 

structures, erect 3 dwellings with associated garages, 
parking, hard and soft landscaping and associated 
works 

 AMENDMENTS Nitrate information  
Ecology impact assessment 
Ecology report 
Site layout 
Roof material alteration on plot 3 

 CASE OFFICER Sarah Barter 
  

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 Click here to view application 

 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee as it 

represents a departure from the Local Plan and Objections have been received 
within the specified time.  

 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The application site forms part of a vacant farm yard with barns and hard 

standing which is accessed from an existing access point on the A27, Salisbury 
Road. The farm yard is located next to a grade 2 listed farm house and wider 
agricultural fields.  

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 Demolish agricultural buildings and associated structures, erect 3 dwellings with 

associated garages, parking, hard and soft landscaping and associated works 
 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 21/00526/PDQS - Application to determine if prior approval is required for 

proposed change of use of agricultural buildings to 5 dwellinghouses (Class 
C3), and for building operations reasonably necessary for the conversion 
reasonably necessary for the conversion – Prior approval required and granted 
– 16.04.2021 
 

4.2 TVS.AG.00014/1 - Steel framed hay/straw store – No Objection  23.03.94 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 10

ITEM 7

https://view-applications.testvalley.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RN90AGQCMFN00


4.3 TVS.AG.00014 - One metal bulk feed bin for animal feed and continuation of 
hard core road – Prior approval not required - 02.11.93 
 

4.4 TVS.3465/1 Erection of agricultural dwelling - Approved subject to conditions - 
16/08/84. 
 

4.5 TVS.3465 Erection of agricultural dwelling Outline Permission subject to 
conditions - 23/04/82. 

 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Landscape – No Objection subject to conditions 

 
5.2 Environment Protection – No Objection subject to conditions 

 
5.3 Trees – No objection subject to condition  

 
5.4 Conservation – No Objection subject to conditions 

 
5.5 Ecology – No Objection subject to conditions 

 
5.6 Natural England – No Objection  

 
5.7 Highways – No Objection subject to conditions  

 
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 31.03.2023 
6.1 Sherfield English Parish Council – Objection  

1. The Parish Council feel the proposed dwellings are too large for the location.  
2. The height of the proposed dwellings are such that windows will overlook the 
existing properties.  
3. The Parish Council have highway concerns, due to single traffic in and out of 
the location.  
4. Further highway concerns due to the sight line onto the busy A27. 
 

6.2 Springfields Glebe Farm, The Old Rectory Salisbury Road, Hillside 
Doctors Hill – Objection (summarised)  
Design 

• The smaller units are more in keeping with the wishes of the village.  
• Larger dwellings now proposed will impact on the landscape.  
• Ridge heights  

 
Affordable Housing 

• No provision for smaller affordable dwellings as identified in housing 
need.  
 

Traffic, parking provision, highway safety 
• Problems exiting from my parking area 

 
Landscape 

• Rural style native hedgerow / tree screening needed 
• Urbanisation of the landscape should be avoided 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 11



Principle 
• This site wouldn’t have qualified if it wasn’t for the class Q 

 
Ecology 

• Active bat community light spill must be considered 
 
Noise 

• Extra traffic  
 
Dust  

• From driving over the access track 
 
Overlooking 

• Loss of privacy  
• Clarification on windows on the North West elevation of Plot 1 are 

dormers or rooflights (in the line of the roof). Rooflight windows are less 
controversial than dormers. 

 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(TVBRLP) 
COM2, E1, E2, E5, E8, E9, LHW4, T1, T2 
 

7.3 Neighbourhood Plan 
Sherfield Neighbourhood Plan – Not Made 

Sherfield English Parish Council submitted an application for the designation of 
a Neighbourhood Area covering the parish of Sherfield English.  This was 
subject to public consultation running from 2nd June to 14th July 2017.  The 
Council has considered the application and the responses received during the 
consultation and has approved the designation. 

The designation of a Neighbourhood Area would enable a Neighbourhood Plan 
to be prepared for the designated area.  Please note that this consultation only 
considered whether a Neighbourhood Area should be designated and upon its 
proposed boundary. 

The plan is at such an early stage that no weight is attributed to it.  
 

7.4 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 
Sherfield Village Design Statement 

 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 12



8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

• Principle of development 
• Impact on the surrounding area 
• Trees 
• Impact on adjacent Listed Buildings 
• Design 
• Impact on neighbouring properties 
• Highway safety and parking provision 
• Ecology 
• Impact on European designated sites e.g. Special Protection Areas 
• Water management 
• Planning balance 

 
8.2 Principle of development 

The application site is located in the countryside outside the boundary of any 
settlement.  Policy COM2 sets out that development outside the boundaries of 
settlements will only be permitted if: 

a) It is appropriate in the countryside as set out in the Revised Local Plan 
policy COM8-COM14, LE10, LE16-LE18; or 

b) It is essential for the proposal to be located in the countryside. 
 

8.3 The permission granted by Class Q of the GPDO has not been implemented 
and therefore the buildings cannot be considered as dwellings under policy 
COM12 (replacement dwellings in the countryside) of the TVBRLP.  There are 
no other policies within the development plan that would support development 
such as this. 
 

8.4 It is acknowledged that the proposed dwellings are within the existing farmyard 
area and extend further into the countryside than the existing agricultural 
buildings.  It is considered that the dwellings and large residential curtilages do 
not meet any of the exception policies within COM2 a) to be located in the 
countryside. The proposal would conflict with policy COM2(a) of the TVBRLP. 
  

8.5 The Test Valley Revised Local Plan DPD is up to date.  As a result, the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development paragraph 14 of the NPPF 
does not apply.  Nevertheless, due regard must be had to Section 38(6) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 11 of the NPPF.  
These set out that if regard is to be had to the development plan for the 
purpose of any determination to be made under the Planning Acts the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.   
 

8.6 The planning history of the site is a material consideration, and in particular 
the permission granted by Class Q of the GPDO (ref. 21/00526/PDQS) 
remains extant, although it is yet to be implemented. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 13



8.7 It is considered that there is a reasonable likelihood that the five buildings 
which were permitted under class Q to be used as dwellings would be 
converted and occupied. The relevant case law that establishes the principle 
of understanding what could reasonably described as a fall-back position, are 
set out in Samuel Smith Old Brewery (Tadcaster) v SSCLG [2009] J.P.L. 
1326. In this context in order for the prospect of a fall-back to be real, it does 
not have to be probable or likely: a possibility will suffice.  Given the planning 
history of the site it is considered that there is a real prospect that the Class Q 
scheme would be implemented and the applicant has confirmed this 
possibility.  In other words, regardless of the outcome of this application, there 
is a possibility that approved scheme would be progressed. As a result, and in 
this case, the fall back position of implementing the Class Q scheme can be 
given significant weight in favour of the grant of planning permission, in 
determining the acceptability of the current proposal.   
 

8.8 The principle of the ‘fallback position’ was also considered in a Test Valley 
appeal decision at Barrow Hill Barns (APP/C1760/W/16/3154235) the 
Inspector considered it necessary to assess the impact of the proposed 
scheme against the permitted scheme, to determine whether or not there 
would be any significant impacts over and above the permitted scheme.  It is 
considered that, for consistency, this approach can be taken with this 
application. 
 

8.9 Landscape and the character of the area  
Policy E1 sets out that development will be permitted if it is of a high quality 
design and local distinctiveness.  To achieve this development: 

a) Should integrate, respect and complement the character of the area in 
which the development is located in terms of layout, appearance, scale, 
materials and building styles; 

b) Should not detract from the dominance of, or interrupt important views 
of, key landmark buildings or features 

c) Should be laid out to provide connectivity between spaces and a 
positive relationship between public and private spaces; and 

d) Makes efficient use of land whilst respecting the character of the 
surrounding area and neighbouring uses. 

 
Development will not be permitted if it is of poor design and fails to improve 
the character, function and quality of the area. 
 

8.10 Policy E2 sets out that development will be permitted provided that: 
a) It does not have a detrimental impact on the appearance of the 

immediate area and the landscape character of the area within which it 
is located; 

b) It is designed and located to ensure that the health and future retention 
of important landscape features is not likely to be prejudiced; 

c) The existing and proposed landscaping and landscape features enable 
it to positively integrate into the landscape character of the area; 

d) Arrangements for the long term management and maintenance of any 
existing and proposed landscaping have been made; and 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 14



e) It conserves the landscape and scenic beauty of the New Forest 
National park or the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty where applicable; and 

f) Does not result in the loss of important local features such as trees, 
walls, hedges or water courses. 

 
8.11 The site itself has no local or statutory landscape designations. It is noted that 

there are a number of rights of way in close proximity to the site, these include: 
Sherfield:41 which runs 105m to the west of the site, Sherfield:36 which runs 
100m to the south of the site and Sherfield:37 which runs 275m to the east of 
the site. Due to the mature vegetation, landform and neighbouring properties 
the views of the site (and vica-versa) from these public rights of way are well 
screened.  
 

8.12 The existing buildings, which benefit from class Q conversions, are located on 
the northern boundary and towards the eastern side of the application site. 
Other agricultural paraphernalia exists in the vicinity of the site and these 
elements would be removed. It is considered that the existing buildings have a 
form, scale and appearance (e.g. materials) that mean that they appear as a 
functional agricultural complex wholly appropriate to it’s rural character and 
setting at Glebe Farm. 
 

8.13 The Class Q scheme would retain the buildings with the existing boundaries of 
the farm yard and the site would be seen as one parcel of land albeit with five 
dwellings within the converted barns. The conversions under the Class Q 
scheme would see the insertion of domestic features such as windows, and 
front and back doors within the existing shapes of the barns.  
 

8.14 Any views from the public realm of the proposed development would be  seen 
in context with the neighbouring properties which are set back from the road. 
When travelling along the A27 (Salisbury Road) the majority of residential 
properties in close proximity to the site are set back from or screened from the 
road by soft landscaping; the application site is set back from the road by 
approx. 75m with the existing agricultural structures visible -albeit at a 
distance. As agricultural barns these do not look out of context, it is considered 
that the proposed dwellings would provide a different view with windows, 
lighting and the associated residential paraphernalia in the gardens. An 
indicative landscape strategy has been submitted within the application which 
gives a good indication of how the dwellings would integrate within the 
immediate and wider landscape. Whilst trees have been dotted around the 
southern perimeter, further mitigation is required by the form of a native 
hedgerow around the southern perimeter of all properties and additional tree 
planting. The recommendation includes scope to secure that additional 
landscaping through condition. Conditions also suggested by the Landscape 
Officer include a detailed landscape plan for hard and soft landscaping and a 
detailed landscape management plan to ensure the successful establishment 
of all new planting. Any external lighting proposed should be incorporated 
within the hard landscape plan. 
  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 15



8.15 The existing barns sizes and heights vary as follows: (All measurements are 
approximate) 
 

 
Whilst at points the proposed dwellings are higher than the existing barns the 
proposed design offers a variation of building heights through the elevations 
with gable features introduced to ensure the massing of the dwellings are not 
significant. The increased height is considered appropriate as it provides a 
design solution – across two stories which are considered to be more in 
keeping with the existing Listed Building and other surrounding properties, that 
that of the original barn buildings. It is acknowledged that there are material 
differences between the proposed dwellings and those approved under the 
Class Q scheme however, it is considered that the proposed scheme would 
not change the overall perception of the landscape in which it sits and that the 
proposed development by virtue of it’s siting and design are more 
representative of the character of the area. The amount of dwellings on site is 
also reduced. It is considered that the proposed scheme is of a higher 
standard of design than the Class Q scheme and that the proposed 
landscaping would enable the proposed scheme to positively integrate into the 
landscape character of the area.  This can be given significant weight in the 
planning balance. 
 

EXISTING  Height Floor 
space 

PROPOSED Height  Floor space 

Barn A on 
the 
eastern 
side of the 
site 
 

6.2m   165m² Plot 1 5.6m / 
6.7m 
(highest 
point at 
ridge) 
 

252m² 

Barn B on 
the north 
eastern 
corner of 
the site 
 

5.7m 180 m² Plot 2 6m / 7.7m 
(highest 
point at 
ridge) 

270m² 
(50m² for 
the garage 
and 220m² 
for the 
dwelling) 

Barn D on 
the 
northern 
boundary 
(PD Class 
Q 2 
dwellings) 
 

5.4m 207m² 
(each 
dwellin
g 
103.5
m²) 

Plot 3 5.4m / 
7.7m 
(highest 
point at 
ridge) 

318m² 
(52m² for 
the garage 
and 266m² 
for the 
dwelling) 

Barn G on 
the 
western 
boundary  
 

3.8m 100m²    

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 16



8.16 Conditions can secure samples and details of materials, and the 
implementation and management of landscaping to ensure that the proposed 
scheme respects and complements the character of the area and positively 
integrates into the landscape character of the area.  The submission also 
ensures that the settlement pattern is maintained through reducing the overall 
number of dwellings being provided on the site and not significantly degrading 
the spacing between hamlets in accordance with the Village Design Statement 
Subject to conditions, the proposed scheme would be in accordance with 
polices E1 and E2 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.17 Trees 
The Tree Officer advises that there are no trees of high public amenity on the 
site. The submitted arboricultural information sets out impact, tree loss, tree 
protection during development and new tree planting. It is noted that no 
information has been submitted regarding services and service routes. Subject 
to securing that detail via a condition it is considered that the development can 
be provided in accordance with policy E2 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.18 Impact on adjacent Listed Building 
Glebe Farmhouse is a Grade II listed building. Under Class Q 
(21/00526/PDQS) there is a fallback position to convert the existing barns into 
dwellings. Due to the constraints placed on the design by Class Q i.e. the 
need to retain the existing barns, which are of no architectural value and not 
especially attractive, the resultant dwellings would give rise to a utilitarian 
appearance. It is not considered they would have made a positive contribution 
to the setting of Glebe Farmhouse.  
 

8.19 The existing farmyard seems to have no historic relationship with the 
farmhouse (i.e. it does not appear to have been the location of the historic 
farmyard range). The land appears to have been an open field until the current 
buildings were added in the mid 20thC. Therefore the present complex makes 
little contribution to understanding the historic context and setting of Glebe 
Farmhouse. The proposed scheme reduces the number of dwellings on the 
site from the permitted five to three. The new buildings would be built on the 
footprints of existing barns, but the overall cumulative footprint would be 
reduced from 1,362m² to 840m². There are some sections of the proposed 
buildings which would be taller than the existing barns, but there are also 
single-storey ranges. Reduction in the height of the building on plot 3 
(especially when viewing the south west and north east elevations) would be 
welcomed, though this is the plot furthest from Glebe Farmhouse and these 
elevations are angled away from views from the access to the Old Rectory 
(see below). The general design of the proposed buildings and the use of 
materials means they would be more attractive than the designs submitted for 
21/00526/PDQS. 
 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 17



8.20 The heritage statement concludes that the site does not form part of the 
setting of The Old Rectory (Summerhill) (Grade 2 listed). Whilst there is limited 
direct intervisibility between the existing barns and the buildings at the Old 
Rectory, they are set parallel to one of the main historic approaches to that 
property and may be seen across the field, particularly in winter time. Given 
that the proposed replacement buildings would be on the same farmyard and 
similar in size, it is reasonable to suppose they would also be visible. 
However, as above, it is considered the proposed design of the new dwellings 
is more attractive than the dilapidated modern barns and the buildings which 
Class Q would have permitted, and therefore they would have a lesser impact 
on the significance of the Old Rectory (through its setting). The Conservation 
Officer considers that the proposed scheme would be preferable in terms of 
the settings of the listed buildings than the scheme which Class Q has 
permitted.  
 

8.21 It is considered the development would make a positive contribution to 
sustaining and enhancing the significance of the heritage asset and would 
offer significant improvement upon the current Class Q permitted scheme. It is 
considered that this development does create less than substantial harm but 
that the public benefit would be significant creating a far more appropriate 
development at this site where heritage asset is present than the Class Q 
extant permission. It is considered that the development can be provided in 
accordance with policy E9 of the TVBRLP.   
 

8.22 Design 
The units will be constructed in timber cladding, brickwork and clay tile roofing 
which are sympathetic to the site’s rural setting. The proposal has been 
designed to reflect a farmyard, with units clustered together to appear as a 
‘farmhouse’, stable conversion, and a threshing barn. As existing agricultural 
buildings on site have a cumulative built footprint of 1,362sq.m. By contrast, 
the proposed cumulative footprint of the units and their associated garaging 
equates to 840 sq.m, resulting in a 38% decrease in the overall built footprint 
on site. The proposal has also ensured that the height of the proposed 
dwellings are not significantly higher than the existing buildings. Whilst parts of 
the dwellings are taller than the height of the existing built form, all three units 
have been designed to encompass extensive single-storey elements, reducing 
the height and mass of the built form. The Village Design Statement states 
that new dwellings should be consistent with both apparent bulk, and external 
materials  of adjacent neighbours but not necessarily any specific details of 
form.  It is considered that the development can be provided in accordance 
with policy E1 of the Revised Local Plan which concerns high quality 
development and the requirements of the Village Design Statement.  
 

8.23 Impact on neighbouring properties 
Policy LHW4 sets out that development will be permitted provided that: 

a) It provides for the privacy and amenity of its occupants and those of 
neighbouring properties; 

b) In the case of residential developments it provides for private open 
space in the form or gardens or communal open space which are 
appropriate for the needs of residents; and 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 18



c) It does not reduce the levels of daylight and sunlight reaching new and 
existing properties or private open space to below acceptable levels 

 
Paragraph 8.19 of the supporting text to policy LHW4 sets out that the public 
should not experience an overbearing impact on their living conditions. 
 

8.24 Glebe Farmhouse 
Glebe Farmhouse is located to the north west of the application site approx. 
30m from the closest plot 1 dwelling. This dwelling is a ‘T’ shape design with 
the projection closest this neighbour single storey in design with two windows 
facing towards the access into Glebe Farmhouse. The two storey element 
which includes a room over the car port / garage is set further back from this 
neighbour by an additional 13m. An elevated window would also offer views 
across the access but given the distances involved and the type of views given 
towards the access and driveway only it is not considered that there would be 
any significant impacts created on this neighbouring property. 
 

8.25 Springfields 
This neighbour is located to the south west of the application site adjacent the 
access track. This dwelling is a bungalow with mature hedgerow and tree 
cover across the eastern boundary. On the northern boundary is a detached 
garage. The closest proposed dwelling is also plot 1. At nearest point the 
dwelling would be approximately 11m from the detached garage at Springfield 
and 21m from the dwelling house. Whilst some oblique views would be given 
from windows which face a southerly direction towards this neighbour given 
these distances it is not considered that any overlooking would be significant 
enough to result in a reason for refusal.  
 

8.26 This neighbour has also raised objections in relation to noise and dust from 
the additional traffic, building and demolition noise. A condition can be added 
to the recommendation ensuring that a construction management plan is 
submitted with details of proposed hours of working and construction routes. 
Once new residents are at the dwellings it isn’t considered that 3 new 
dwellings would create an unreasonable amount of noise associated with 
domestic use which isn’t already heard in the surroundings at other residential 
properties.  
 

8.27 The Old Rectory (Summerhill) 
This neighbour is located to the north of the application site over approx. 100m 
from the boundary with the application site. This boundary is a mixture of trees 
and hedgerow which provide sporadic screening across its length. At the 
closest points plot 1 is approx. 7.5m from this boundary, plot 2 approx. 12m 
and plot 3 approx. 8m. Any views of the dwellings would be at a greater 
distance than the existing farm buildings some of which are located directly on 
this boundary.  
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 19



8.28 This neighbour has raised concern in respect of overlooking from proposed 
windows. The two storey element of plot 1 does not have any windows facing 
towards this neighbour. The roof lights proposed on the single storey 
projection are in the roof slope and would not offer any opportunity for views 
given they are approx. 3.5m above the floor level of the room they serve. Plot 
2 again has no windows in the 2 storey element facing this neighbour which 
provides a car port and living space over at the front of the plot. There are 4 
windows proposed at ground floor, glazing over the front door and a larger 
window at first floor in the two storey element. This first floor window would 
serve a bedroom. This window would be located approx. 20m from the 
application site boundary. When considering the distance The Old Rectory 
building is from the boundary with the site (in excess of approx. 100m) in 
addition to the 20m already stated it is not considered that any significant 
overlooking would arise from the presence of this first floor window.  
 

8.29 
 

Plot 3 has first floor windows on the closest elevation to this neighbour at 
approx. 6.8m from the boundary. The north eastern elevation, due to tis 
orientation, then widens the separation distance to approx. 18m, as the 
dwelling is on an angle. There are 3 small dormer windows and 3 roof lights on 
this elevation. There are also first floor windows on the southern two storey 
element of this plot at approx. 20m from the boundary together with an 
inverted balcony. When considering the intervening boundary treatment and 
the distances involved between this plot and the neighbour to the north it is not 
considered that there would be any significant impacts in terms of significant 
overlooking.  
 

8.30 Farmside 
This neighbour is located to the west of the application site by approx. 168m. 
Plot 3 would be located closest to this neighbour with the north eastern 
elevation facing towards this neighbour. There are 3 small dormer windows 
and 3 roof lights on this elevation but given the separation distance involved it 
is not considered that there would be any significant impacts in terms of 
overlooking.  
 

8.31 It is considered that the development can be provided in accordance with 
policy LHW4 which concerns amenity.  
 

8.32 Highway Safety and Parking provision 
There is sufficient space on site for parking and turning which would enable 
vehicular traffic to access the A27 in a forward gear. The Highway Authority is 
satisfied that the proposal would not lead to any material detrimental impact 
upon the safety and efficiency of the public highway network. As such, it is 
considered that the development would not have an adverse impact on the 
function, safety and character of the Right of Way or the local highway 
network.  It is considered that the proposal would be in accordance with policy 
T1 of the TVBRLP. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 20



8.33 The proposed scheme provides 3no. three and five bedroom properties 
requiring 3 on site car parking spaces for each dwelling under the standards of 
Annex G.  The garages provide 2 spaces per garage and together with an 
ample driveway space the required spaces are provided on each plot.  Subject 
to a condition to secure parking before the dwellings are occupied, the 
proposal would be in accordance with policy T2 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.34 In respect of refuse the applicant has advised that a private management 
company will collect refuse. As existing the Council workers come up the drive 
to collect the refuse and it is anticipated a similar operation will be provided 
with the private operation.  
 

8.35 Ecology 
Policy E5 sets out that development in the Borough that will conserve, and 
where possible restore and/or enhance biodiversity will be permitted. 
 

8.36 This application is supported by an Ecological Impact Assessment (Eclipse 
Ecology, November 2022), which the Council Ecologist is satisfied represents 
the current nature of the site. 
 

8.37 Bats 
Buildings on site have all been assessed as having negligible potential for 
roosting bats, and no further surveys or mitigation has been recommended.  
In view of the survey findings the Council Ecologist would advise that the 
development is unlikely to result in a breach of the law protecting bats and 
would raise no concerns. An advisory note is suggested.  
 

8.38 Lighting 
The extent of proposed lighting and likely impacts on suitable foraging and 
commuting habitats for bats are required to ensure that significant adverse 
impacts are unlikely to occur. It is understood that lighting may be restricted to 
security lighting on the dwellings, with no lighting proposed for the access. A 
condition is recommended for details of external lighting.  
 

8.39 Dormice  
Dormice have been recorded within 1km of the site boundary, and the 
ecologist asked for further information in this respect.  I would therefore advise 
the assessment in relation to dormice is revised to reflect this. The applicant 
has confirmed - We provided a dormouse nest check of all the relevant habitat 
on-site (hedge – which is outside the red-line boundary and isolated areas of 
scrub on-site). No evidence of dormice was found during this nest check. The 
survey method is appropriate for the vegetation clearance proposed and is in 
accordance with Natural England’s standing advice. The scrub is isolated and 
not suitable for dormice and only a small number of young/sapling trees are 
proposed for removal. Despite this, all hedge and scrub habitat was checked – 
this was detailed in the report. 
 

8.40 The Council Ecologist has reviewed the above and accepts the applicant’s 
justification subject to ensuring a species rich native hedgerow is provided on 
the northern boundary.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 21



8.41 Amphibians  
Section 4.3.3 of the report has indicated that there are “no water bodies within 
250m” of the site. Having reviewed local maps, a number of water bodies have 
been identified within 250m to the north and west of the site, with more located 
within 500m of the proposed development site. The Council Ecologist would 
has therefore advised that further assessment and surveys are required 
regarding amphibian species (i.e. GCN). The applicant has responded 
advising - The waterbodies to the west are 272m away from the application 
site boundary and are not within 250m (A map was provided). We measure 
the two ponds to the north of the site are 251m away from the site. Even if 
these two ponds are included within the 250m zone there is still no 
requirement for surveys according to Natural England’s GCN rapid risk 
assessment calculation. Ponds between 250m and 500m of the site were 
scoped out of the assessment for reasons/criteria given in Section 3.4.3 of the 
EcIA – which is taken from Natural England’s mitigation licensing form. There 
is no reason to assess ponds between 250-500m. There is also no reason to 
assess/survey the above ponds any further for reasons given above. The 
Councils Ecologist is content to accept this justification.  
 

8.42 Reptiles  
A habitat manipulation strategy during the construction phase has been 
proposed to reduce the risk of harm to reptiles, with replacement suitable 
habitat provided within the ecology mitigation planting. The Council Ecologist 
asked for further details regarding the location of replacement reptile habitat 
during the construction and operational phase. It is understood that two 
hibernacula will be situated on site following the works, however the location 
does not appear to have been included on the ecology mitigation plan. I would 
ask that this is rectified. The applicant has updated the Ecology Mitigation & 
Enhancement Plan to show an area of long grassland and two hibernacula 
suitable for reptiles to be maintained throughout construction and operation of 
the development. 
 

8.43 It is considered that the development can be provided in accordance with 
policy E5 of the TVBRLP subject to appropriate conditions. 
 

8.44 Special Protection Areas 
New Forest SPA 
In line with Policy E5 and Section 11 of the NPPF, consideration should be 
given to potential implications on international designations.  The development 
would result in a net increase in residential dwellings within 13.6km of the New 
Forest SPA.  This distance defines the zone identified by recent research 
where new residents would be considered likely to visit the New Forest.  The 
New Forest SPA supports a range of bird species that are vulnerable to 
impacts arising from increases in recreational use of the Forest that result from 
new housing development. While clearly one new house on its own would not 
result in any significant effects, it has been demonstrated through research, 
and agreed by Natural England (the governments statutory nature 
conservation advisors, who have provided comments on this proposal) that 
any net increase (even single dwellings) would have a likely significant effect 
on the SPA when considered in combination with other plans and projects. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 22



8.45 To address this issue, Test Valley Borough Council has adopted an interim 
mitigation strategy whereby a scale of developer contributions of £1300 per 
new dwelling has been agreed that would fund the delivery of a new strategic 
area of alternative recreational open space that would offer the same sort of 
recreational opportunities as those offered by the New Forest.  The applicant 
paid this direct to the Council on the 7th June 2023. 
 

8.46 Nitrate Neutrality 
The River Test and its major tributaries flow into the Solent.  The Solent region 
is one of the most important for wildlife in the United Kingdom. There are 
currently high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus input into this water 
environment and there is evidence to suggest that this is having a detrimental 
impact on the biodiversity of this area.  Housing and other certain types of 
development are currently contributing negatively towards this issue and there 
is evidence that further development, without mitigation, would exacerbate this 
impact. 

The Solent region consists of the following Special Areas of Conservation 
(SAC) and Special Protection Areas (SPA): 

• Chichester and Langstone Harbours SPA 

• Portsmouth Harbour SPA 

• Solent and Southampton Water SPA 

• Isle of Wight Lagoons SPA 

• Solent Maritime SAC 

• Solent and Dorset Coast SPA (Proposed) 
 

8.47 These sites are protected by National and European Law which requires the 
Council to undertake a formal assessment of the implications of any new plans 
or projects that may be capable of affecting the designated interest features of 
European Sites before deciding whether to grant planning permission for new 
residential development. This formal assessment is known as an Appropriate 
Assessment and considers the potential adverse effects of a plan or project (in 
combination with other plans or projects) on Special Areas of Conservation 
and Special Protection Areas. The European Court of Justice recently 
determined a case related to considering water quality in Appropriate 
Assessments. The impact of the case law is that any development which could 
result in a decrease in water quality would cause a likely significant effect on 
the Solent’s European sites. 
 

8.48 In the context of planning, the impact comes from population increase and the 
resultant increase in effluent. Proposed developments for new housing, hotels 
and care homes (as well as other forms of overnight accommodation) are 
being affected by the issue as a result. A nitrate budget calculation has been 
submitted and an Appropriate Assessment submitted to Natural England. 
Natural England raise no objection to the proposal. To offset the output, the 
applicant proposes to use the budget provided by the previous use of the site 
as a dairy farm together with the use of a PTP. Attached to the planning file is 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 23



a declaration from the previous farmer confirming the farms use. The 
proposed development does not conflict with the Habitats Regulations and 
accords with Policy E5 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.49 Water Management 
Water consumption 
The Revised Local Plan includes a requirement under policy E7 for all new 
residential dwellings to achieve a water consumption standard of no more than 
110 litres per person per day. This reflects the requirements of part G2 of the 
2015 Building Regulations. It is recommended that a condition be added in 
order to address this. Subject to such a condition the proposal would comply 
with policy E7 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.50 Drainage – Foul 
It is proposed to connect to Package Treatment Plants at each plot. 
 

8.51 Drainage – surface water  
Surface water drainage is proposed to be controlled through soakaways.  
 

8.52 Planning balance 
The proposed scheme would represent a departure from the Development 
plan with respect to development in the countryside.   It is however considered 
that the fallback position to implement the Class Q scheme is a real prospect 
that carries significant weight in favour of the current proposal.  Additionally, 
the proposed scheme would not have any significant or detrimental impacts 
over and above the effect of complying with the extant Class Q scheme. 
Additionally, the proposal is considered to represent an improvement to the 
setting of the Listed Building, improvements in design and the landscape 
improvements to be secured via condition, and would assist in delivering 
against the Council’s housing requirement.  It is considered that the proposal 
justifies the departure from the Development Plan in this instance. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 It is considered that the material considerations of the proposed scheme 

outweigh the conflict with the Development Plan.   
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers  
 20220-01 P1 - Location plan 
 20220-03 P1 - Existing site plan 
 20220-04 P1 - Existing site layout 
 20220-05 P1  - Proposed site plan 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 24



 20220-06 P1 - Proposed site layout 
 20220-20 P1 - Proposed elevations plot 1 
 20220-21 P1 - Proposed elevations plot 2 
 20220-30 P1 - Proposed elevations plot 3 
 20220-10 P1 - Proposed ground floor - Plot 1 and 2 
 20220-11 P1 - Proposed first Floor - Plot 1 and 2 
 20220-25 P1 - Proposed floor - Plot 3 
 20220-35 P1 - Proposed garage plot 2 
 20220-31 P1 - Proposed section - Plot 3 
 TPP-KC/GLEBEFARM/001 - Tree Protection  
 045-MP-01 - Landscape details  
 20220-07 P1 - Ecology mitigation and enhancement  
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 3. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1. 

 4. The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid 
out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles to 
enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in 
accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter 
be reserved for such purposes at all times. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1. 

 5. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until full details of hard and soft 
landscape works have been submitted and approved. Details shall 
include-where appropriate: proposed finished levels or contours, 
means of enclosure and car parking layouts where relevant. 
Soft landscape works shall include: planting plans; written 
specifications (including cultivation and other operations 
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of 
plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities. 
The landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
implementation programme and in accordance with the 
management plan. 
Reason:  To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 25



 6. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until a schedule of landscape 
implementation and maintenance for a minimum period of   years 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The schedule shall include details of the 
arrangements for the phasing of the implementation and ongoing 
maintenance during that period in accordance with appropriate 
British Standards or other recognised codes of practise. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
schedule. 
Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance 
to a suitable standard of the approved landscape designs to 
create and maintain the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
to contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2. 

 7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order 
amending, revoking or re-enacting that Order), no building, 
structure, walls or fences of any kind shall be erected without the 
prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise 
control in the locality in the interest of the local amenities in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E1. 

 8. Details of the siting and design of any proposed external meter 
boxes/metal ducting/flues shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of development. The installation of the meter 
boxes/metal ducting/flues shall be in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason:  To protect the setting of the listed building and the wider 
landscape in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan (2016) Policies E1, E2 and E9 

 9. Prior to the commencement of demolition and construction 
activity including site clearance or ground-works, a Construction 
Environment Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority for approval. The CEMP shall detail the 
significant risks posed to amenity from the emission of noise, 
dust and light and set out the mitigation measures to be employed 
to control such emissions and mitigate the effects of such 
emissions on sensitive land uses. Unless otherwise agreed by the 
Local Planning Authority, construction activity shall only take 
place in  accordance with the approved CEMP.  
Reason: To minimise the risks of pollution and to ensure the site 
is satisfactorily developed in accordance with policy E8 of the 
Revised Borough Local Plan 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 26



 10. No work relating to the construction of the development hereby 
approved, including site clearance, deliveries, collections or 
works of demolition or preparation prior to operations, shall take 
place before the hours of 07.30 nor after 18.00 on Mondays to 
Fridays; before the hours of 08.00 nor after 13.00 on Saturdays; 
and at all on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays, unless otherwise 
agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby dwellings in 
accordance with policy LHW4 of the Revised Borough Local Plan 
2016. 

 11. In the event that contamination is found at any time during 
demolition and/or construction works, the presence of such 
contamination shall be reported in writing to the Local Planning 
Authority without delay and development shall be suspended on 
the affected part of the site until a remediation scheme for dealing 
with that contamination has been approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved remediation scheme shall be 
implemented and, if requested, a verification report, for the 
purpose of certifying adherence to the approved remediation 
scheme, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior 
to the site being brought in to use. 
Reason: To minimise the risks of pollution and to ensure the site 
is satisfactorily de-contaminated in accordance with policy E8 of 
the Revised Borough Local Plan 

 12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order 
revoking and  re-enacting that Order with or without modification), 
no windows/dormer windows [other than those expressly 
authorised by this permission] shall be constructed. 
Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise 
control in the locality in the interest of the local amenities in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policies E1, E2, LHW4 

 13. Development shall be provided in accordance with Section 7 
‘Precautionary Measures, Avoidance & Mitigation’ of the 
Ecological Impact Assessment by Eclipse Ecology Ltd (February 
2023) and the ‘Proposed Ecology Mitigation and Enhancement 
Plan’ drawing no. 20220-07 by LDArchitecture Ltd dated 10.02.23. 
Reason: To ensure the favourable conservation status of 
protected species in accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley 
Revised Local Plan 

 14. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in full 
accordance with the provisions set out within the Technical 
Arboriculture Arboricultural Impact Appraisal and Method 
Statement reference AIA/AMS-KC/GLEBEFARM/001 dated 
November 2022. 
Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the 
retention of existing trees and natural features during the 
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 27



 15. All service routes, drain runs, soakaways or excavations in 
connection with the development hereby permitted shall remain 
wholly outside the tree protective barrier.  
Reason: To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

 16. The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to 
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day 
water efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015. 
Reason: In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016. 

 17. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details, 
including plans and cross sections, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and 
proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of 
the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof 
course in relation thereto. Development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new 
development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees 
in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E1 

 18. No external lighting shall be installed until details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The submitted details shall include plans and details 
sufficient to demonstrate the location, type, specification and 
luminance level. External lighting shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: To ensure the favourable conservation status of 
protected species in accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016). 

 19. At least the first 4.5 metres of both access tracks measured from 
the nearside edge of carriageway of the adjacent highway shall be 
surfaced in a non-migratory material prior to the use of the access 
commencing and retained as such at all times. 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1 

 20. The proposed Rewatec Solido Smart package treatment plants 
shall be installed to serve the dwellings hereby permitted prior to 
occupation. The treatment plants shall be retained and maintained 
in accordance with the foul drainage management plan (Rewatec 
Solido Smart package treatment plant user guide), unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: In order to avoid adverse impact on the Solent and 
Southampton Water SPA by way of additional nitrates emanating 
from the development in accordance with the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and Policy E5 of the Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016). 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 28



 21. In the event that any of the approved Rewatec Solido Smart 
package treatment plants are replaced, the replacement package 
treatment plant/s shall achieve a performance output of 10mg/l 
nitrogen or less, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason: In order to avoid adverse impact on the Solent and 
Southampton Water SPA by way of additional nitrates emanating 
from the development in accordance with the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and Policy E5 of the Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016). 

 Notes to applicant: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and 

completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans, 
specifications and written particulars for which permission is 
hereby granted or which are subsequently submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and in 
compliance with any conditions imposed by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 2. There is potential at this location for asbestos containing material. 
If this is found at any time during implementation of the 
development please be aware that removal and disposal must be 
undertaken in accordance with all legal requirements, whether 
they be enforced by the Local Authority or other government 
agencies. Any such removal and disposal must be completed 
prior to the site being brought in to use. 

 3. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. All work 
must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. 
droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are encountered at 
any point during this development. Should this occur, further 
advice should be sought from Natural England and/or a 
professional ecologist. 

 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 29



Glebe Farm

Hall

41.8m

Springfields

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

22/03317/FULLS

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 30



45.0

44.0

46
.0

44.0

46.0

45
.0

45
.0

47.0

46
.0

48.0

48.0

49.0

53.0

52.0

51.0

57.0

56.0

55.0

54.0

50.0

53.0

52.0

51.0

56.0

55.0

54.0

49.0

49.0

49
.0

50.0

47.0

49.0

48.0

46.0

47.0

Gravel

Driveway

Plot 1

"The Stables"

Plot 2

"The Barn"

Existing Field

Access

Gravel

Driveway

Gravel

Driveway

Plot 3

"Glebe House"

+FFL 47.65

+FFL 47.65

+FFL 47.50

+FFL 47.50

+FFL 47.50

+
FFL 47.30

+FFL 47.65

+FFL 47.50

+FFL 47.65

+FFL 47.00

+FFL 46.54

+FFL 47.30

+FFL 47.30

+FFL 47.70

+FFL 47.65

+FFL 48.25

+FFL 48.10

+FFL 48.25

+FFL 48.10

+FFL 48.30 +FFL 48.25

+TOW 48.60

+FFL 48.10

Paved

Terrace

Paved

Terrace

Paved

Terrace

Paved

Terrace

Paved

Terrace

Paved

Terrace

Paved

Terrace

Lawn

Lawn

Lawn

Lawn

Gravel

Road

+FFL 48.55

+FFL 48.10

w

B

o

o

t

s

C

o

a

t

s

w

Living

Bedroom 3

Family

Bathroom

Bedroom 2

WC

Double Garage

Double Garage

Kitchen

Family

Bedroom 4

14m² approx

Utility

Pantry

Entrance

Hall

w

w

Utility

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

Kitchen

Dining

Entrance

Hall

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

b

e

a

m

 

(

o

v

e

r

 

w

a

l

l

s

)

Family

Bathroom

Bedroom 5

Bedroom 3

w

w

En-Suite

(

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

 

u

n

d

e

r

h

a

l

f

 

l

a

n

d

i

n

g

)

lo

g

s

lo

g

s

Dining

Living

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

 

(

o

v

e

r

 

w

a

l

l

)

o

a

k

 

b

e

a

m

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

Dressing

En-Suite

w

w

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

Bedroom 4

Master Bedroom

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

d

u

a

l

 

a

s

p

e

c

t

l

o

g

 

b

u

r

n

e

r

h

a

l

f

 

h

e

i

g

h

t

 

b

r

i

c

k

w

o

r

k

 

w

a

l

l

w

i

t

h

 

e

x

p

o

s

e

d

 

t

i

m

b

e

r

 

f

r

a

m

e

 

a

b

o

v

e

 

t

o

 

t

r

u

s

s

5000

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

Utility

Boots

Double Garage

with rear workbench space

Loft Storage

Entrance

Coats

Pantry

WC

Bedroom 5

Bedroom 4

Snug

Kitchen

Living

Family

l
o

g

s

l
o

g

s

d

u

a

l a

s

p

e

c

t

lo

g

 b

u

rn

e

r

w

(s

to

ra

g

e

 u

n

d

e

r

h

a

lf la

n

d

in

g

)

w

Dining

o

a

k

 tru

s

s

o

a

k

 tru

s

s

o

a

k

 tru

s

s

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

En-Suite

En-Suite

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

V

e

lu

x

 M

K

0

6

48
.0

47.0

Proposed Site Layout Plan
1:500

N

LDArchitecture Ltd

PLANNING

client name:

Mr & Mrs.Whitfield

project:

Glebe Farm, Sherfield English

drawing:

Proposed Site Layout Plan

drawing number:

20220 - 06

scale:

1:500 @ A1

rev:

P2

10 0 10 20m

2468 13579

Scale 1:500NOTE:
All grass, trees, and planting shown is indicative of the proposal.
See Landscape Architect's drawings for details and species information.

NOTE:
All drawings based on as existing
Topographical Survey provided by
ADS Surveys Ltd on 24/06/2021

by checkedP1 MB
Issued for Planning
16.12.2022

by checkedP2 MB
Plot 3 roof materials revised. Issued for Planning
24.05.2023

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
GY:47.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
45.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
46.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
46.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
46.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
45.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
45.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
45.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
44.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
44.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
44.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
43.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
43.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
43.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
43.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
43.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
43.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
43.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
43.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
43.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
44.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
44.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
44.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
44.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
45.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
45.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
45.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
50.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
51.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
51.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
RHT:57.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
RHT:58.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
EAVTILE:53.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
ESTATE RAIL DILAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
ADS23

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
ADS R501

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
ADS R502

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
ADS R503

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
ADS R504

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
ADS R505

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
ADS R506

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
ADS18326

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
ADS18327

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
EAVTILE:49.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
RHT:50.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
EAVTILE:50.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
RHT:51.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
EAVTILE:48.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
46.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
EAVTILE:48.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
CL:47.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
46.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
46.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
DILAP P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
WPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
OIL TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
DILAP P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
DILAP P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
P+R

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
WPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
M RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
M RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
STEEL COL+SLEEPERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
STEEL COL+SLEEPERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
DILAP WPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
DILAP WPOST



46.0

46
.0

47
.0

48
.0

49
.0

49.0

49
.0

50
.0

47
.0

49
.0

48
.0

46
.0

47
.0

G
r
a
v
e
l

D
r
i
v
e
w

a
y

P
l
o
t
 
1

"
T

h
e
 
S

t
a
b
l
e
s
"

P
l
o
t
 
2

"
T

h
e
 
B

a
r
n
"

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
F

i
e
l
d

A
c
c
e
s
s

G
r
a
v
e
l

D
r
i
v
e
w

a
y

G
r
a
v
e
l

D
r
i
v
e
w

a
y

P
l
o
t
 
3

"
G

l
e
b
e
 
H

o
u
s
e
"

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.3
0

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.0
0

+
FF

L 
46

.5
4

+
FF

L 
47

.3
0

+
FF

L 
47

.3
0

+
FF

L 
47

.7
0

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
48

.2
5

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

+
FF

L 
48

.2
5

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

+
FF

L 
48

.3
0

+
FF

L 
48

.2
5

+
TO

W
 4

8.
60

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

P
a
v
e
d

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

P
a
v
e
d

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

P
a
v
e
d

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

P
a
v
e
d

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

P
a
v
e
d

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

P
a
v
e
d

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

P
a
v
e
d

T
e
r
r
a
c
e

L
a
w

n

L
a
w

n

L
a
w

n

L
a
w

n

G
r
a
v
e
l

R
o
a
d

+
FF

L 
48

.5
5

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

w

B

o

o

t

s

C

o

a

t

s

w

L
i
v
i
n

g

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
3

F
a

m
i
l
y

B
a

t
h

r
o

o
m

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
2

W
C

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
G

a
r
a

g
e

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
G

a
r
a

g
e

K
i
t
c
h

e
n

F
a

m
i
l
y

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

1
4

m
²
 
a

p
p

r
o

x

U
t
i
l
i
t
y

P
a

n
t
r
y

E
n

t
r
a

n
c
e

H
a

l
l

w

w

U
t
i
l
i
t
y

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

K
i
t
c
h

e
n

D
i
n

i
n

g

E
n

t
r
a

n
c
e

H
a

l
l

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

b

e

a

m

 

(

o

v

e

r

 

w

a

l

l

s

)

F
a

m
i
l
y

B
a

t
h

r
o

o
m

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
5

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
3

w

w

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

(

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

 

u

n

d

e

r

h

a

l

f

 

l

a

n

d

i

n

g

)

l

o

g

s

l

o

g

s

D
i
n

i
n

g

L
i
v
i
n

g

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

 

(

o

v

e

r

 

w

a

l

l

)

o

a

k

 

b

e

a

m

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

D
r
e

s
s
i
n

g

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

w

w

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

M
a

s
t
e

r
 
B

e
d

r
o

o
m

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

d

u

a

l

 

a

s

p

e

c

t

l

o

g

 

b

u

r

n

e

r

h

a

l

f

 

h

e

i

g

h

t

 

b

r

i

c

k

w

o

r

k

 

w

a

l

l

w

i

t

h

 

e

x

p

o

s

e

d

 

t

i

m

b

e

r

 

f

r

a

m

e

 

a

b

o

v

e

 

t

o

 

t

r

u

s

s

5000

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

U
t
i
l
i
t
y

B
o

o
t
s

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
G

a
r
a

g
e

w
i
t
h

 
r
e

a
r
 
w

o
r
k
b

e
n

c
h

 
s
p

a
c
e

L
o

f
t
 
S

t
o

r
a

g
e

E
n

t
r
a

n
c
e

C
o

a
t
s

P
a

n
t
r
y

W
C

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
5

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

S
n

u
g

K
i
t
c
h

e
n

L
i
v
i
n

g

F
a

m
i
l
y

l
o

g

s

l
o

g

s

d

u

a

l
 

a

s

p

e

c

t

l
o

g

 

b

u

r

n

e

r

w

(

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

 

u

n

d

e

r

h

a

l
f

 

l
a

n

d

i
n

g

)

w

D
i
n

i
n

g

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

48.0

47
.0

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 S
ite

 P
la

n
1:

20
0

N

L
D

A
r
c
h

i
t
e
c
t
u

r
e

 
L
t
d

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

c
l
i
e

n
t
 
n

a
m

e
:

M
r
 
&

 
M

r
s
.
W

h
i
t
f
i
e

l
d

p
r
o

j
e

c
t
:

G
l
e

b
e

 
F

a
r
m

,
 
S

h
e

r
f
i
e

l
d

 
E

n
g

l
i
s
h

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
:

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
S

i
t
e

 
P

l
a

n

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
:

2
0

2
2

0
 
-
 
0

5

s
c
a

l
e

:

1
:
2

0
0

 
@

 
A

1

r
e

v
:

P
2

1
0

2
4

6
8

1
0

m

.
4

.
8

1
3

5
7

9

.
2

.
6

S
c
a
l
e
 
1
:
2
0
0

N
O

TE
:

A
ll 

g
ra

ss
, t

re
e

s,
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
tin

g
 s

h
o

w
n

 is
 in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

f t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l.
Se

e
 L

a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 A

rc
h

ite
c

t's
 d

e
sig

n
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 fo

r d
e

ta
ils

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
ie

s 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
.

N
O

TE
:

A
ll 

d
ra

w
in

g
s 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
s 

e
xi

st
in

g
To

p
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l S
u

rv
e

y 
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 b

y
A

D
S 

Su
rv

e
ys

 L
td

 o
n

 2
4/

06
/2

02
1

b
y

c
h

e
c

ke
d

P1
M

B
Is

su
e

d
 fo

r P
la

n
n

in
g

16
.1

2.
20

22

Th
is 

d
ra

w
in

g
 is

 t
o

 b
e

 re
a

d
 in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c

tio
n

w
ith

 d
ra

w
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 re

p
o

rt
s 

fr
o

m
:

In
d

ig
o

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 A
rc

h
ite

c
ts

:
La

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 M
a

st
e

r P
la

n
 n

o
. 1

04
5-

M
P-

01
Su

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

10
45

-S
-2

02
2-

12
-1

2

Ec
lip

se
 E

c
o

lo
g

y:
Ec

o
lo

g
ic

a
l I

m
p

a
c

t 
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
P2

66
.1

.1

A
ll 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 s

ite
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

a
c

c
o

rd
a

n
c

e
 w

ith
 t

h
e

 m
iti

g
a

tio
n

 a
n

d
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
u

tli
n

e
d

 in
 S

e
c

tio
n

 7
 a

n
d

Se
c

tio
n

 8
 o

f t
h

e
 E

c
o

lo
g

y 
Im

p
a

c
t

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

P2
66

.1
.1

A
d

j
a

c
e

n
t
 
H

e
d

g
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
p

r
o

t
e

c
t
e

d
 
a

n
d

m
a

i
n

t
a

i
n

e
d

 
d

u
r
i
n

g
 
c
o

n
s
t
r
u

c
t
i
o

n
 
a

s
 
S

e
c
t
i
o

n
 
7

.
6

a
n

d
 
7

.
7

 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
E

c
o

l
o

g
i
c
a

l
 
I
m

p
a

c
t
 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

F
e

n
c
e

s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
i
n

s
t
a

l
l
e

d
 
i
n

 
a

c
c
o

r
d

a
n

c
e

 
w

i
t
h

 
S

e
c
t
i
o

n

7
.
1

0
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
E

c
o

l
o

g
i
c
a

l
 
I
m

p
a

c
t
 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

b
y

c
h

e
c

ke
d

P2
M

B
Pl

o
t 

3 
ro

o
f m

a
te

ria
ls 

re
vi

se
d

. I
ss

u
e

d
 fo

r P
la

n
n

in
g

24
.0

5.
20

23

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
EAVTILE:49.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
RHT:50.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
EAVTILE:50.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
RHT:51.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
EAVTILE:48.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
EAVTILE:48.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
DILAP P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
WPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
OIL TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
DILAP P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
DILAP P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
P+R

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
P+W

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
WPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
MPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
M RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
M RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
STEEL COL+SLEEPERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
STEEL COL+SLEEPERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
DILAP WPOST

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
DILAP WPOST



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 33



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 34



47
.0

P
l
o

t
 
1

"
T

h
e

 
S

t
a

b
l
e

s
"

P
l
o

t
 
2

"
T

h
e

 
B

a
r
n

"

G
r
a

v
e

l

D
r
i
v
e

w
a

y

G
r
a

v
e

l

D
r
i
v
e

w
a

y

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.3
0

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.5
0

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
47

.0
0

+
FF

L 
46

.5
4

+
FF

L 
47

.3
0

+
FF

L 
47

.3
0

+
FF

L 
47

.7
0

+
FF

L 
47

.6
5

+
FF

L 
48

.2
5

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

P
a

v
e

d

T
e

r
r
a

c
e

P
a

v
e

d

T
e

r
r
a

c
e

P
a

v
e

d

T
e

r
r
a

c
e

P
a

v
e

d

T
e

r
r
a

c
e

L
a

w
n

L
a

w
n

G
r
a

v
e

l

R
o

a
d

w

B

o

o

t

s

C

o

a

t

s

w

L
i
v
i
n

g

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
3

F
a

m
i
l
y

B
a

t
h

r
o

o
m

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
2

W
C

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
G

a
r
a

g
e

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
G

a
r
a

g
e

K
i
t
c
h

e
n

F
a

m
i
l
y

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

1
4

m
²
 
a

p
p

r
o

x

U
t
i
l
i
t
y

P
a

n
t
r
y

E
n

t
r
a

n
c
e

H
a

l
l

w

w

U
t
i
l
i
t
y

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

K
i
t
c
h

e
n

D
i
n

i
n

g

E
n

t
r
a

n
c
e

H
a

l
l

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

b

e

a

m

 

(

o

v

e

r

 

w

a

l

l

s

)

F
a

m
i
l
y

B
a

t
h

r
o

o
m

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
5

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
3

w

w

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

(

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

 

u

n

d

e

r

h

a

l

f

 

l

a

n

d

i

n

g

)

l

o

g

s

l

o

g

s

D
i
n

i
n

g

L
i
v
i
n

g

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

 

(

o

v

e

r

 

w

a

l

l

)

o

a

k

 

b

e

a

m

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

D
r
e

s
s
i
n

g

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

w

w

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

M
a

s
t
e

r
 
B

e
d

r
o

o
m

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

d

u

a

l

 

a

s

p

e

c

t

l

o

g

 

b

u

r

n

e

r

h

a

l

f

 

h

e

i

g

h

t

 

b

r

i

c

k

w

o

r

k

 

w

a

l

l

w

i

t

h

 

e

x

p

o

s

e

d

 

t

i

m

b

e

r

 

f

r

a

m

e

 

a

b

o

v

e

 

t

o

 

t

r

u

s

s

5000

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

U
t
i
l
i
t
y

B
o

o
t
s

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
G

a
r
a

g
e

w
i
t
h

 
r
e

a
r
 
w

o
r
k
b

e
n

c
h

 
s
p

a
c
e

L
o

f
t
 
S

t
o

r
a

g
e

W
C

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
5

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

w

(

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

 

u

n

d

e

r

h

a

l
f

 

l
a

n

d

i
n

g

)

w

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

1
0

1
2

3
4

5
m

.
2

.
4

.
6

.
8

S
c
a
l
e
 
1
:
1
0
0

N

L
D

A
r
c
h

i
t
e
c
t
u

r
e

 
L
t
d

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

c
l
i
e

n
t
 
n

a
m

e
:

M
r
 
&

 
M

r
s
.
W

h
i
t
f
i
e

l
d

p
r
o

j
e

c
t
:

G
l
e

b
e

 
F

a
r
m

,
 
S

h
e

r
f
i
e

l
d

 
E

n
g

l
i
s
h

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
:

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
G

r
o

u
n

d
 
F

l
o

o
r
 
P

l
a

n
s
 
(
P

l
o

t
 
1

 
a

n
d

 
2

)

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
:

2
0

2
2

0
 
-
 
1

0

s
c
a

l
e

:

1
:
1

0
0

 
@

 
A

1

r
e

v
:

P
1

Pl
o

t 2
 G

ro
un

d
 F

lo
o

r P
la

n
1:

10
0

N
O

TE
:

A
ll 

d
ra

w
in

g
s 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
s 

e
xi

st
in

g
 T

o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l

Su
rv

e
y 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y 

A
D

S 
Su

rv
e

ys
 L

td
 o

n
24

/0
6/

20
21

Pl
o

t 1
 G

ro
un

d
 F

lo
o

r P
la

n
1:

10
0

b
y

c
h

e
c

ke
d

P1
M

B
Is

su
e

d
 fo

r P
la

n
n

in
g

16
.1

2.
20

22Th
is 

d
ra

w
in

g
 is

 t
o

 b
e

 re
a

d
 in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c

tio
n

w
ith

 d
ra

w
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 re

p
o

rt
s 

fr
o

m
:

In
d

ig
o

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 A
rc

h
ite

c
ts

:
La

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 M
a

st
e

r P
la

n
 n

o
. 1

04
5-

M
P-

01
Su

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

10
45

-S
-2

02
2-

12
-1

2

N
O

TE
:

A
ll 

g
ra

ss
, t

re
e

s,
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
tin

g
 s

h
o

w
n

 is
 in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

f t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l.
Se

e
 L

a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 A

rc
h

ite
c

t's
 d

e
sig

n
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 fo

r d
e

ta
ils

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
ie

s 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 35



E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

w

M
a

s
t
e

r
 
B

e
d

r
o

o
m

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
2

L
a

n
d

i
n

g

B
a

l
c
o

n
y

w

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

D
r
e

s
s
i
n

g

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

H
o

m
e

 
O

f
f
i
c
e

/
 
G

a
m

e
s
 
R

o
o

m

/
 
G

y
m

H
o

m
e

 
O

f
f
i
c
e

/
 
G

a
m

e
s
 
R

o
o

m

/
 
G

y
m

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l

u

x

 

F

K

0

4

e

a

v

e

s

 

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

e

a

v

e

s

 

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

e

a

v

e

s

 

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

e

a

v

e

s

 

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

P
l
o

t
 
1

"
T

h
e

 
S

t
a

b
l
e

s
"

P
l
o

t
 
2

"
T

h
e

 
B

a
r
n

"

L

i

m

i

t

 

o

f

 

2

0

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

L

i

m

i

t

 

o

f

 

1

8

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

L

i

m

i

t

 

o

f

 

2

0

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

L

i

m

i

t

 

o

f

 

1

8

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

L

i

m

i

t

 

o

f

 

2

0

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

L

i

m

i

t

 

o

f

 

1

8

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

Pl
o

t 1
 F

irs
t F

lo
o

r P
la

n
1:

10
0

1
0

1
2

3
4

5
m

.
2

.
4

.
6

.
8

S
c
a
l
e
 
1
:
1
0
0

N

L
D

A
r
c
h

i
t
e
c
t
u

r
e

 
L
t
d

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

c
l
i
e

n
t
 
n

a
m

e
:

M
r
 
&

 
M

r
s
.
W

h
i
t
f
i
e

l
d

p
r
o

j
e

c
t
:

G
l
e

b
e

 
F

a
r
m

,
 
S

h
e

r
f
i
e

l
d

 
E

n
g

l
i
s
h

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
:

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
F

i
r
s
t
 
F

l
o

o
r
 
P

l
a

n
s
 
(
P

l
o

t
 
1

 
a

n
d

 
2

)

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
:

2
0

2
2

0
 
-
 
1

5

s
c
a

l
e

:

1
:
1

0
0

 
@

 
A

1

r
e

v
:

P
1

Pl
o

t 2
 F

irs
t F

lo
o

r P
la

n
1:

10
0

N
O

TE
:

A
ll 

d
ra

w
in

g
s 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
s 

e
xi

st
in

g
 T

o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l

Su
rv

e
y 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y 

A
D

S 
Su

rv
e

ys
 L

td
 o

n
24

/0
6/

20
21

b
y

c
h

e
c

ke
d

P1
M

B
Is

su
e

d
 fo

r P
la

n
n

in
g

16
.1

2.
20

22

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 36



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 37



w

w

H
o
m

e
 
O

f
f
i
c
e

/
 
S

t
u
d
y

E
n
-
S

u
i
t
e

B
e
d
r
o
o
m

 
3

B
e
d
r
o
o
m

 
2

B
a
l
c
o
n
y

B
a
l
c
o
n
y

B
a
l
c
o
n
y

C
p
d

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

L

i
m

i
t

 

o

f

 

2

0

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

L

i
m

i
t

 

o

f

 

1

8

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

 

(

e

a

v

e

s

)

L

i
m

i
t

 

o

f

 

2

0

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

L

i
m

i
t

 

o

f

 

1

8

0

0

m

m

 

h

e

a

d

r

o

o

m

 

(

e

a

v

e

s

)

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

w

w

M
a
s
t
e
r
 
B

e
d
r
o
o
m

D
r
e
s
s
i
n
g

E
n
-
S

u
i
t
e

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

E
n
-
S

u
i
t
e

A

A

B

B

49
.0

G
r
a

v
e

l

D
r
i
v
e
w

a
y

P
l
o
t
 
3

"
G

l
e
b
e
 
H

o
u
s
e
"

+
FF

L 
48

.2
5

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

+
FF

L 
48

.2
5

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

+
FF

L 
48

.3
0

+
FF

L 
48

.2
5

+
TO

W
 4

8.
60

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

P
a

v
e

d

T
e

r
r
a

c
e

P
a

v
e

d

T
e

r
r
a

c
e

P
a

v
e

d

T
e

r
r
a

c
e

L
a

w
n

+
FF

L 
48

.5
5

+
FF

L 
48

.1
0

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

1
4

m
²
 
a

p
p

r
o

x

U
t
i
l
i
t
y

B
o

o
t
s

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
G

a
r
a

g
e

w
i
t
h

 
r
e

a
r
 
w

o
r
k
b

e
n

c
h

 
s
p

a
c
e

L
o

f
t
 
S

t
o

r
a

g
e

E
n

t
r
a

n
c
e

C
o

a
t
s

P
a

n
t
r
y

W
C

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
5

B
e

d
r
o

o
m

 
4

S
n

u
g

K
i
t
c
h

e
n

L
i
v
i
n

g

F
a

m
i
l
y

l
o

g

s

l
o

g

s

d

u

a

l
 

a

s

p

e

c

t

l
o

g

 

b

u

r

n

e

r

w

(

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

 

u

n

d

e

r

h

a

l
f

 

l
a

n

d

i
n

g

)

w

D
i
n

i
n

g

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

o

a

k

 

t

r

u

s

s

w

o

r

k

b

e

n

c

h

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

E
n

-
S

u
i
t
e

A

A

B

B

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

V

e

l
u

x

 

M

K

0

6

1
0

1
2

3
4

5
m

.
2

.
4

.
6

.
8

S
c
a
l
e
 
1
:
1
0
0

N

L
D

A
r
c
h

i
t
e
c
t
u

r
e

 
L
t
d

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

c
l
i
e

n
t
 
n

a
m

e
:

M
r
 
&

 
M

r
s
.
W

h
i
t
f
i
e

l
d

p
r
o

j
e

c
t
:

G
l
e

b
e

 
F

a
r
m

,
 
S

h
e

r
f
i
e

l
d

 
E

n
g

l
i
s
h

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
n

u
m

b
e

r
:

2
0

2
2

0
 
-
 
2

5

s
c
a

l
e

:

1
:
1

0
0

 
@

 
A

1

r
e

v
:

P
1

Pl
o

t 3
 G

ro
un

d
 F

lo
o

r P
la

n
1:

10
0

d
r
a

w
i
n

g
:

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
F

l
o

o
r
 
P

l
a

n
s
 
(
P

l
o

t
 
3

)

Pl
o

t 3
 F

irs
t F

lo
o

r P
la

n
1:

10
0

N
O

TE
:

A
ll 

d
ra

w
in

g
s 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
s 

e
xi

st
in

g
 T

o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l

Su
rv

e
y 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y 

A
D

S 
Su

rv
e

ys
 L

td
 o

n
24

/0
6/

20
21

b
y

c
h

e
c

ke
d

P1
M

B
Is

su
e

d
 fo

r P
la

n
n

in
g

16
.1

2.
20

22Th
is 

d
ra

w
in

g
 is

 t
o

 b
e

 re
a

d
 in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c

tio
n

w
ith

 d
ra

w
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 re

p
o

rt
s 

fr
o

m
:

In
d

ig
o

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 A
rc

h
ite

c
ts

:
La

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 M
a

st
e

r P
la

n
 n

o
. 1

04
5-

M
P-

01
Su

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 L
a

n
d

sc
a

p
e

 In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

10
45

-S
-2

02
2-

12
-1

2

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
DILAP P+W



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 39



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 40



BU
ILD

IN
G 

B 
GA

RD
EN

 

BU
ILD

IN
G 

A 
GA

RD
EN

 

BU
ILD

IN
G 

D 
GA

RD
EN

 

Un
it 

1

Un
it 

2

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 41



 
 
 
 
 APPLICATION NO. 23/00867/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 29.03.2023 
 APPLICANT Mr and Mrs A Kay 
 SITE Pinns Farm , Foxes Lane, West Wellow, SO51 6DS,  

WELLOW  
 PROPOSAL Change of use of land from agricultural to residential 

and construction of swimming pool and plant room 
 AMENDMENTS • Additional Ecology Survey Submitted 23rd May 

2023  
 CASE OFFICER Katie Savage 
  

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 Click here to view application 

 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee at the 

request of a Member. 
 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 Pinns Farm is a Grade II listed dwelling set back from Foxes Lane within the 

countryside. The site is host to a number of outbuildings which contribute to the 
farm’s setting. The proposed site is to the north of the main dwelling sited in an 
area which is currently consists of vegetation and large trees.  

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 Change of use of land from agricultural to residential and construction of 

swimming pool and plant room 
 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 13/02465/LBWS - Enlarge existing opening in Kitchen – Refuse  

9.12.2013 
 

4.2 15/00316/PDMBS - Notification for Prior Approval under Class MB - Change of 
use of former barn, stable and piggery to two dwellings – Prior Approval Not 
Required - 07.04.2015  
 

4.3 18/02079/FULLS - Replacement of single metal field gate with double metal 
field gates and post and rail fencing; enlargement of area of hardstanding 
(Retrospective) – Permission subject to conditions and notes 19.10.2018 
 

4.4 18/02990/FULLS - Retention of a field shelter, erection of two field shelters and 
associated hard standing – Permission subject to conditions and notes 
22.01.2019 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 42

ITEM 8

https://view-applications.testvalley.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RSA9LVQCH9J00


4.5 21/03719/FULLS - Extensions and alterations to rear wing of dwelling; removal 
of glazing from orangery to create external covered loggia; internal alterations – 
Permission subject to conditions and notes 30.06.2022 

4.6 21/03720/LBWS - Extensions and alterations to rear wing of dwelling; removal 
of glazing from orangery to create external covered loggia; internal alterations – 
Consent subject to conditions and notes 30.06.2022 
 

4.7 22/00770/FULLS - Convert agricultural barns and granary into ancillary 
accommodation, garage, study, workshop, pool house and install outdoor 
swimming pool – Withdrawn 03.05.2022  
 

4.8 22/00776/LBWS - Convert agricultural barns and granary into ancillary 
accommodation, garage, study, workshop, pool house and install outdoor 
swimming pool – Withdrawn 03.05.2022 
 

4.9 22/02131/LBWS - Re-roofing of existing dwelling and replacement of rainwater 
goods – Consent subject to conditions and notes 25.10.2022 
 

4.10 22/02453/LBWS - Regularisation application - Reinstatement of grain-bin 
dividers to granary – Consent subject to conditions and notes 09.11.2022 
 

4.11 23/00342/FULLS - Change of use of land from agricultural to residential and 
construction of swimming pool and plant room – Withdrawn 24.03.2023 
 

4.12 23/00366/FULLS - Installation of ground source heat pump, PV array and 
required borehole array to serve Pinns Farm – Permitted subject to conditions 
and notes 05.05.2023 
 

4.13 23/01076/FULLS - Conversion and change of use of redundant agricultural 
barns into ancillary accommodation to serve Pinns Farmhouse – Pending 
Consideration  

 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Ecology – No objection subject to condition  

 
5.2 Trees – No objection subject to condition  

 
5.3 Conservation – Objection (summarised) 

• The proposed location to be unacceptable and inappropriate 
• The pool would introduce a domestic, modern intrusive 

feature on the site which is not agricultural in appearance or 
function 

• The high level of hard landscaping, including retaining walls, 
associated with the pool means this part of the site will 
fundamentally be altered 

• Lack of public benefit 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 43



6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 07.06.2023 
6.1 Wellow Parish Council – No objection  

Case officer note: The Parish Council have suggested an ecology survey be 
submitted. Following the initial consultation with the Councils ecologist an 
ecology survey now supports the application.  

 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP) 
COM2 – Settlement Hierarchy 
COM11 - Existing Dwellings and Ancillary Domestic Buildings in the 
Countryside 
E1 – High Quality Development in the Borough  
E2 – Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the 
Borough 
E5 – Biodiversity  
E9 – Heritage 
LHW4 – Amenity 
 

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents 
Wellow Village Design Statement (VDS) 

 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

• Principle of development 
• Impact on the setting of the listed building 
• Impact on the character and appearance of the area  
• Impact on neighbouring amenity  
• Impact on trees 
• Impact on ecology  
 

8.2 Principle of development  
The sites lies within the Countryside in the area of Wellow which does not have a 
defined settlement boundary and is as such classified as Countryside as defined 
on the Inset Maps of the TVBRLP. Development outside the boundaries of 
settlements will only be permitted provided it is appropriate to other policies of 
the TVRLP or it is essential to be located in the Countryside.  
 

8.3 Policy COM2 of the TVBRLP states that development outside the boundaries of 
settlements will only be permitted if:  

a) It is appropriate in the countryside as set out in the Revised Local Plan 
Policy COM8 – COM14, LE10, LE16 – LE18; or  

b) It is essential for the proposal to be located in the countryside 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 44



 
8.4 With regards to the change of use of land and construction of a swimming pool 

and plant room, in this instance it is considered that no policies listed in COM2 
(a) are relevant to the consideration of the application. It is thus necessary for the 
development to be considered as essential to be located in the countryside to 
comply with the development plan.  
 

8.5 The existing property currently benefits from a large residential curtilage.  The 
application as submitted does not provide any evidence that an extension to an 
already large residential garden, was appropriate in policy terms or indeed 
essential. The meaning of ‘essential’ is not defined within Policy COM2. 
Therefore, it is necessary to consider it within its usual meaning. Taking into 
consideration the size of the existing residential garden and curtilage serving this 
property it is hard to envisage circumstances where the provision of such an area 
of private amenity space, incidental to the enjoyment of a dwelling, can be 
considered absolutely necessary, particularly in circumstances where the 
dwelling benefits from a generous garden and policy compliant parking provision, 
storage and living space. Uses in a location which is in direct conflict with the 
Council’s spatial aspirations for the area is a matter which can be given 
significant weight, given that paragraph 15 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (the Framework) emphasises that the planning system should be 
genuinely plan-led. The essential need has not been demonstrated in this 
instance and the development does not comply with criterion b) of COM2 and as 
such the principle of development is not supported. 
 

8.6 Impact on the Grade II Listed Building  
Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 places a statutory duty upon decision makers to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings. 
 

8.7 The NPPF advises that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource and should 
be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance. Paragraph 199 of the 
NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on 
the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to 
the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight 
should be. Significance can be harmed by development within its setting. 
 

8.8 As stated within the Wellow Village Design Statement, Wellow possesses many 
Grade II listed cottages and farmhouses from the 16th and 17th centuries, 
principally in the older parts of the centre of West Wellow. Pinns Farmhouse is a 
Grade II listed building set back from Foxes Lane within a rural area. The listing 
description states that the house dates from the 17th century, early 19th century 
and the late 20th century. To the northwest of the farmhouse and separated by a 
driveway is a rough u-shaped historic farmyard. The farmyard contains a staddle 
stone, timber clad, granary, which fronts onto Foxes Lane, and which is also a 
designated heritage asset, listed as Grade II, with its listing description 
describing the building as dating from the early 19th century. The other range of 
historic farm buildings, which range from 1-1.5 storeys in height, are not listed in 
their own right. However, given their date, which would appear to be pre-1948, 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 45



and that they were likely in the same ownership and association with Pinns 
Farmhouse at the time of listing in 1957, they would meet tests as being  
curtilage listed buildings. It is not clear what the use of these farm buildings 
would have been at the time of listing, but it is likely that they would have been 
agricultural.  
 

8.9 The historic farmyard relates positively to Pinns Farmhouse being in close 
proximity, along with its historic use in association with the farmhouse and its 
appearance as a generally well preserved historic farmyard, constructed from 
characterful vernacular material.  
 

8.10 The conservation officer has raised an objection and considers the proposed 
location to be unacceptable and inappropriate.  It is acknowledged that the 
proposal is behind this historic group of buildings, but that does not mean it 
would not be in the immediate context of the historic farm, and incongruous in 
the setting of the farm buildings, including the buildings in the courtyard and the 
farmhouse.  
 

8.11 Point 3 of the Building guidance in the Wellow VDS it suggests “all development 
should reflect the inherent character of the locality, established by the size, scale 
and design of the surrounding buildings and should utilize materials to reflect in 
colour and texture”. The farmyard has a rural setting, un-manicured copses and 
are all a part of this setting. There are other areas of trees and undergrowth in 
the vicinity, this forms part of the wider countryside landscape and the wider 
historical farm land that the property would have been associated with. The 
proposed landscaping would involve the introduction of hard materials which 
would conflict with the natural rural environment which are not considered to be 
sympathetic to this setting. Further to this, as part of the proposal there are 
mature trees to be removed and the vegetation cover which is currently in situ 
which would be lost in order to construct the pool and hut with the introduction of 
hard landscaping. As stated within point 9 of the environment guidance 
contained within the Wellow VDS, “wherever possible new development should 
retain existing trees and hedgerows where appropriate.” The pool would 
introduce a domestic, modern intrusive feature on the site which is not 
agricultural in appearance or function. The existing landscape contributes to the 
rural setting and farm like feel which would be lost as a result of the proposal. 
 

8.12 The high level of hard landscaping, including retaining walls, associated with the 
pool means this part of the site will fundamentally be altered which would result 
in a degree of harm, less than substantial, at the low – mid end of the spectrum. 
And would therefore result in conflict with Policy E9, paragraphs 195 and 200 of 
the NPPF, Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 which require that special regard shall be had to the desirability of 
preserving listed buildings or their settings or any features of special architectural 
or historic interest which they possess.  
 

8.13 Public benefit  
Paragraph 199 of the NPPF asserts that any harm to the significance of the 
heritage asset should be weighed against any public benefits:  
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 46



Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the 
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against 
the public benefits of the proposal, including, where appropriate, securing its 
optimum viable use.  
 

8.14 The supporting information contends the pool is necessary to deliver the heritage 
benefits of repairing the historic buildings on site. The Conservation Officer does 
not consider this to be the case. There is no clear link made, in the application, 
between the delivery of the swimming pool and the repair of any of the buildings. 
(e.g. the pool would not generate income which could be spent on repairs, nor 
would constructing the pool provide active viable reuse of any of the historic 
buildings). A swimming pool might make the site more attractive to the current 
owners, but there is no clear demonstration the site needs a pool in order to 
make it viable, or that another owner would require a pool. The benefit would be 
a private benefit to the current owner.  
 

8.15 With regard to any potential public benefits to outweigh the harm identified, as 
directed by the NPPF and Local Plan, this has not been demonstrated. It is 
apparent that the works are for the personal benefit of the occupiers, in the 
swimming pool would be for private use.  As such the scheme would not 
generate any public benefits. Therefore, there would be clear conflict with both 
the NPPF and Policy E9 of TVBRLP.  
 

8.16 Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
The proposed site for the change of use is set back from Foxes Lane and located 
at a lower level than the existing farmhouse. The land slopes downwards to the 
north of the site, away from the listed building. The proposed site is proposed to 
be adjacent to an existing outbuilding on the site which sits between the 
proposed site and main listed house. As the site currently stands, this area is 
bordered by estate fencing to the east and soft mature hedging to the west. The 
site is also host to a number of large mature trees which will be required to be 
removed as a result of the proposed development which would open up views 
between the privately owned fields. Due to the siting of the proposed swimming 
pool and associated landscaping, direct views into the site are unlikely due to the 
separation distance between the main road, Foxes Lane and Pinns Farm. 
However, views within the site would be altered due to the introduction of more 
modern materials. However, as full view of the proposed development would not 
be possible it is not considered the proposal would cause detrimental visual harm 
to the character and appearance of the area. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be in accordance with Policy E1 of TVBRLP.  
 

8.17 Impact on neighbouring amenity 
As stated above, the application site is set back from the main road, Foxes Lane. 
The site is a large plot which does not have any immediate neighbours which 
border the proposed site, there are large separation distances which would be 
maintained as a result of the proposed development. It is not considered the 
proposed development would offer any additional overlooking opportunities or 
contribute to an overbearing impact on neighbours. Furthermore, as the 
swimming pool will be dug into the ground, it is not considered that the proposal 
would contribute to any loss of light. As a result, the proposal is in accordance 
with Policy LHW4.  
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 47



8.18 Impact on trees  
The site is host to many large mature trees which are located within close 
proximity to the proposed site. As a result of the proposed development some of 
these trees will be required to be removed. An arboricultural impact assessment 
has been submitted to support the application showing tree removal and 
retention. The tree officer has been consulted on the application to which no 
objection was made in regards to the tree removal or retention. The tree officer 
has recommended, in the event that planning permission is granted, that a 
method statement and tree protection plan is necessary, but can be controlled by 
planning condition. Therefore, the proposal is in accordance with Policy E2.  
 

8.19 Impact on ecology  
The Council’s ecologist was consulted on the application who raised an initial 
objection. Following the review of site photographs and the submitted application 
plans, it was advised that further ecological information is required to support this 
application. It is understood from the tree constraints plan that a number of 
mature trees will be removed as part of the proposed scheme. The location of 
the proposed swimming pool currently consists of woodland habitat, with mature 
trees, ground flora and scrub habitat, and is connected to further woodland 
habitat in the wider area. There are a number of protected species recorded 
within the vicinity of the proposed development which, if present on site, may be 
impacted by the proposed development. Due to the habitats present on site, 
potential presence of protected species and the habitat to be impacted by the 
proposed development, it was recommend that any application is supported by 
ecological information provided by a qualified ecologist. 
 

8.20 Following the initial comments received, the applicant has employed a suitably 
qualified ecologist to undertake a preliminary ecology report which now supports 
the application. The report sets out the findings of the Phase 1 habitat survey 
and protected species assessment, and makes suitable recommendations to 
ensure the site’s ecological receptors are protected where possible, and losses 
mitigated where needed. The Council’s ecologist has been consulted on this 
information and raised no objection to the scheme. In the event that planning 
permission were to be granted it is recommended that the permission is 
conditioned to ensure development proceeds in accordance with the submitted 
details.  
 

8.21 Planning Balance 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section 
70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that “determination 
must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise”. 
 

8.22 The plan is not absent or silent in respect of policies that affect the development 
and against which it can adequately be considered. As relevant policies in the 
plan are not absent, silent or out of date paragraph 11 of the Framework is not 
engaged. The Council is therefore in the position of carrying out a straight 
balance, in decision making this means determining the application in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise and as advised at paragraph 12 of the Framework development that 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 48



accords with the development plan should be approved, and proposed 
development that conflicts should be refused unless other material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

8.23 It is acknowledged that, subject to conditions, the proposal would not have any 
harm upon on-site protected species, to the mature trees or any harm to 
residential amenities.  
 

8.24 As set out above, the application does conflict with two of the policies set out 
within the local plan. There has been no evidence submitted to justify the need 
for the development and it is clear the application site has sufficient space within 
its residential curtilage for a swimming pool, therefore the proposed site would 
represent inappropriate development within the countryside location. As a result, 
the proposal is not considered to be essential in the countryside location. The 
harm to the setting of the listed building is also afforded considerable weight. The 
development is considered to cause less than substantial harm to the setting of 
the listed building and there is an absence of any public benefits. The benefits of 
the proposed development would be to the property owner. Taking into 
consideration the above there are no benefits of the scheme that would clearly 
outweigh the identified harm and conflict with local and national planning policies. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 The proposed change of use with swimming pool is not considered to be in 

accordance with Policy COM2 or Policy E9 of the Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan. Harm to the setting of the listed building has been 
identified and there are no public benefits that would overcome this harm. The 
proposal is therefore in conflict with Policy COM2, Policy E9, the NPPF & 
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 which require that special regard shall be had to the desirability of 
preserving listed buildings or their settings or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which they possess. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 REFUSE for the reasons: 
 1. The proposed development would result in development and uses 

that are not considered to be essential within the countryside.  The 
proposal therefore represents unjustified development in the 
countryside for which there is no overriding need and would 
therefore be contrary to the provisions of Policy COM2 of the Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016). 

 2. The proposed change of use and construction of swimming pool, 
plant room and associated landscaping by virtue of its size, 
design and location, is considered to introduce a domestic 
modern and intrusive feature on the site which is not agricultural 
in appearance of function. As a result of the proposed 
development this part of the site will be fundamentally altered and 
is considered to cause less than substantial harm to the setting of 
the listed building.  In accordance with Policy E9 of the Test Valley 
Borough Council Revised Local Plan, all works must sustain or 
enhance the significance of the heritage asset taking account of 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 49



its character, appearance and setting. The development is 
detrimental to the special architectural and historic importance of 
the heritage asset and therefore would result in unacceptable 
harm to the character and appearance of the designated heritage 
asset. No public benefits have been identified or justified to 
outweigh the harm to the Listed Building and the proposal is thus 
contrary to Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, paragraph 199 of the NPPF and 
Policy E9 of the Test Valley Borough Council Revised Local Plan. 

 Note to applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has  

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals 
focused on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents 
in a positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application 
advice service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may 
arise in dealing with the application and where possible 
suggesting solutions. 

 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 50



32.9m

33.8m

Track

Foxhills Farm

Pinns Farm

The Bungalow

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

23/00867/FULLS

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 51



OU
TB

UI
LD

IN
G 

2

Gr
as

s

Gr
as

s

Ex
ist

ing
 m

et
al 

ra
ilin

g 
fe

nc
e

1.
20

 m
H 

an
d 

ga
te

Ex
ist

ing
 s

to
ck

 p
ro

of
 fe

nc
e

1.
20

 m
H

Gr
as

s

Gr
as

s

Gr
as

s
Ex

ist
ing

 b
ric

k w
all

 1
.5

0 
mH

Ex
ist

ing
 b

ric
k w

all
 1

.5
0 

mH

Brick

Gr
av

el

Gr
av

el

Te
rra

ce

Ex
ist

ing
 m

ixe
d 

he
dg

es
3.

00
 m

H

Gr
av

el

Ex
ist

ing
 s

to
ck

 p
ro

of
 fe

nc
e

Ex
ist

ing
 g

at
e 

an
d 

st
oc

k
pr

oo
f f

en
ce

 1
.2

0 
mH

MAIN HOUSE

Gr
av

el
Ta

rm
ac

Gr
as

s

OUTBUILDING 1

Ta
rm

ac

Ex
ist

ing
 m

ixe
d 

he
dg

e 
5.

00
 m

H

Ex
ist

ing
 h

ed
ge

 1
.5

0 
mH

YRANARG

Ex
ist

ing
 b

ric
k w

all

K 
E 

Y

Ex
ist

ing
 tr

ee
s

co
nc

re
te

Gr
as

s

Gr
as

s

co
nc

re
te

NE
W

SW
IM

M
IN

G
PO

OL

Pl
an

tin
g

Up

Up

Tr
ee

s 
& 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
to

be
 re

mo
ve

d

Ne
w 

pl
an

tin
g

Ex
ist

ing
 c

on
cr

et
e 

wa
ll

0.
50

 m
H

Ex
ist

ing
 c

on
cr

et
e 

wa
ll 1

.0
0 

mH
Co

nc
re

te
 p

av
ing

OU
TB

UI
LD

ING
 3

Gr
as

s 
& 

co
nc

re
te

Shrub
s

Gr
as

s

log
 st

ac
k

Pl
an

ts

Gr
as

s

Ex
ist

ing
 c

on
ife

r h
ed

ge
 1

.0
0 

mH

Ex
ist

ing
 s

to
ck

 p
ro

of
 fe

nc
e

1.
20

 m
H 

an
d 

ga
te

Ex
ist

ing
 m

et
al 

ra
ilin

g 
fe

nc
e

1.
20

 m
H 

an
d 

ga
te

De
mo

lit
io

n

TO
W

35
.6

0

TO
W

35
.6

0

32
.0

0

31
.5

0

33
.0

0

35
.0

0

32
.5

0

33
.0

0

33
.5

0

34
.0

0

34
.5

0

32
.0

0

Pl
an

tin
g

Te
rra

ce

A

31
.8

0

31
.0

0

A

Ne
w 

wa
ll

Te
rra

ce

B

B

Ke
rb

lin
e

am
en

de
d

Te
rra

ce

34
.8

3

T3

T4

T5

T7

T1
6

T2

Po
ol

 p
lan

t
ho

us
ing

He
at

 p
um

p 
on

gr
av

ell
ed

ha
rd

st
an

di
ng

33
.0

0

Th
e 

Bu
ng

al
ow

Tr
ac

k

Fo
xh

ills
 F

ar
m

Pi
nn

s 
Fa

rm

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

, (
c)

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 2

02
1.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. L

ic
en

ce
 n

um
be

r 1
00

02
24

32

Fox
es

 la
ne

m00. 0332
.0

0m

34
.0

0mm00. 6338
.0

0mm00. 04

m00. 24

PO
OL

OU
TB

UI
LD

IN
G 

1
TE

RR
AC

E
PL

AN
TIN

G
W

AL
L

GR
AV

EL
GR

AS
S

Ex
ist

ing
 m

et
al 

ra
ilin

g 
fe

nc
e

1.
20

 m
H 

an
d 

ga
te

Ex
ist

ing
 g

ro
un

d 
lin

e

B

30
.0

0mm00. 2334
.0

0mm00. 6338
.0

0m

40
.0

0mm00. 24

PL
AN

TIN
G

GR
AS

S
TE

RR
AC

E
PO

OL
TE

RR
AC

E
W

AL
L

TE
RR

AC
E

Ex
ist

ing
 m

et
al 

ra
ilin

g 
fe

nc
e

1.
20

 m
H 

an
d 

ga
te

Ex
ist

ing
 g

ro
un

d 
lin

e

M
ain

 h
ou

se
 b

ey
on

d

A

Pe
w

se
y

te
l (

01
67

2)
 5

69
44

4
SN

9 
5A

F
W

ilt
sh

ire

39
 H

ig
h 

St
re

et

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
s,

 S
ub

 C
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 a
nd

 S
up

pl
ie

rs
 a

re
 to

 c
he

ck
 a

ll
re

le
va

nt
 d

im
en

sio
ns

 a
nd

 le
ve

ls 
of

 si
te

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 b

ef
or

e
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 a

ny
 sh

op
 d

ra
w

in
gs

 o
r b

ui
ld

in
g 

w
or

k.

Th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

is 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

 in
 a

ny
 p

ar
t

of
 fo

rm
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 w
ri�

en
 c

on
se

nt
 o

f F
ow

le
r A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e 

an
d

Pl
an

ni
ng

dr
aw

in
g 

no

sc
al

e
dr

aw
n 

by

dr
aw

in
g

pr
oj

ec
t

re
v

da
te

re
vi

sio
ns

da
te

en
qu

iri
es

@
fa

ap
.c

o.
uk

fa
x 

(0
16

72
) 5

69
48

8

in
i�

al O
ct

 '2
2

1:
12

50
,1

:2
00

 @
A1

-

Lo
ca

�o
n 

&
 S

ite
pl

an
 - 

Po
ol

C

SB

21
05

35
-1

40

PI
N

N
S 

FA
RM

W
ES

T 
W

EL
LO

W

Lo
ca

tio
n 

pl
an

1:
12

50
0m

20
m

40
m

60
m

09
.0

2.
23

A
Si

te
 p

la
n 

up
da

te

Si
te

 p
lan

1:
20

0
0m

5m
10

m

Si
te

 S
ec

tio
n 

AA
1:

20
0

0m
5m

10
m

Si
te

 S
ec

tio
n 

BB
1:

20
0

0m
5m

10
m

SB
15

.0
3.

23
B

Lo
ca

�o
n 

re
d 

lin
e 

am
en

de
d.

EG
29

.0
3.

23
C

Lo
ca

�o
n 

re
d 

lin
e 

am
en

de
d.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 52



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 53



Pr
op
os
ed

Pl
an
tin
g
St
ra
te
gy

La
nd

to
re
ar
of
Pi
nn
s
Fa
rm
,F
ox
es
La
ne
,H
am

ps
hi
re
,S
O
51
6D
S.

Pr
ep
ar
ed

by
B
R
AW

N
La
nd
sc
ap
es
|N
ov
em

be
r2
02
2

Is
su
ed
:2
9.
11
.2
2

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 54



Pr
op
os
ed

pl
an
tin
g
st
ra
te
gy

fo
rp
oo
la
re
a
an
d
su
rr
ou
nd
in
g
w
oo
dl
an
d

Th
is
st
ra
te
gy
ha
s
be
en

pr
ep
ar
ed

to
illu
st
ra
te
th
e
so
ft
la
nd
sc
ap
e
tre
at
m
en
tf
or
th
e

de
ve
lo
pm

en
to
ft
he

la
nd

to
re
ar
of
Pi
nn
s
Fa
rm

ho
us
e,
Fo
xe
s
La
ne
,H
am

ps
hi
re
.I
t

se
ek
s
to
m
iti
ga
te
fo
rt
he

lo
ss
of
ha
bi
ta
tf
ro
m
th
e
re
m
ov
al
of
tre
es
to
al
lo
w
fo
rt
he

co
ns
tru
ct
io
n
of
a
po
ol
,t
he

pa
ve
d
te
rra
ce
an
d
gr
av
el
ac
ce
ss
st
ep
s.
By

pr
op
os
in
g
a

m
ix
of
na
tiv
e
sp
ec
ie
s
an
d
a
ra
ng
e
of
pl
an
tin
g
ty
pe
s
to
en
ha
nc
e
th
e
na
tu
ra
lh
ab
ita
t

th
e
ne
w
po
ol
w
ill
in
te
gr
at
e
in
to
th
e
na
tu
ra
ls
lo
pe

of
th
e
si
te
.

Th
e
La
nd
sc
ap
e
M
as
te
rp
la
n
illu
st
ra
te
s
th
e
in
te
nd
ed

la
yo
ut
of
th
e
pr
op
os
ed

pl
an
tin
g

ar
ea
s
th
at
in
cl
ud
e;
w
ild
flo
w
er
se
ed
in
g
an
d
pl
ug

pl
an
tin
g,
na
tiv
e
br
oa
dl
ea
ft
re
e

pl
an
in
g,
th
e
re
te
nt
io
n,
en
ha
nc
em

en
ta
nd

pr
ot
ec
tio
n
(B
S
58
37

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e)
of
th
e

ex
is
tin
g
bo
un
da
ry
he
dg
er
ow
s
an
d
m
at
ur
e
tre
es
an
d
ex
te
ns
iv
e
sp
ec
im
en

sh
ru
b

an
d
tre
e
pl
an
tin
g.

Th
e
pr
op
os
ed

na
tiv
e
tre
e
pl
an
ta
tio
n
to
th
e
no
rth

w
ill
re
pl
ac
e
th
e
ne
ce
ss
ar
y

re
m
ov
al
of
th
e
6
x
no
.e
xi
st
in
g
tre
es

w
ith
ov
er
a
do
ze
n
se
m
i-m

at
ur
e
an
d
m
at
ur
e

tre
es
se
le
ct
ed

fo
rt
he
ir
ab
ilit
y
to
en
ha
nc
e
th
e
bi
od
iv
er
si
ty
of
th
e
m
os
tly
pi
ne

ex
is
tin
g
w
oo
dl
an
d
w
hi
ch

ex
is
ts
to
th
e
ea
st
.T
he

la
rg
e
tre
es
pr
ot
ec
te
d
by

a
ne
w

na
tiv
e
he
dg
er
ow

an
d
fe
nc
e
lin
e
al
on
g
th
e
no
rth
er
n
an
d
ea
st
er
n
bo
un
da
rie
s
w
ill

pr
ov
id
e
ne
st
in
g
op
po
rtu
ni
tie
s
an
d
im
pr
ov
ed

fli
gh
tl
in
es

fo
rb
at
s.

R
ea
ct
in
g
to
th
e
to
po
gr
ap
hy
of
th
e
si
te
sw
at
he
s
of
gr
as
se
s
in
te
rs
pe
rs
ed

w
ith

sh
ru
b

ar
ea
s
w
ill
he
lp
so
fte
n
an
d
in
te
gr
at
e
th
e
po
ol
in
to
a
na
tu
ra
lis
ed

se
tti
ng
.

Th
e
ov
er
al
le
co
lo
gy
of
th
e
si
te
w
ill
be
ne
fit
fro
m
:

•
Th
e
en
ha
nc
em

en
to
ft
he

am
en
ity
gr
as
sl
an
d
ar
ea
s
w
ith
m
ea
do
w
an
d
m
od
ifi
ed

se
ed

m
ix
es

•
N
ew

w
ild
flo
w
er
ar
ea
s:
EM

5
M
ea
do
w
M
ix
an
d
EL
1
M
od
ifi
ed

G
ra
ss
Se
ed

M
ix
@

4g
ra
m
s
/m
2

•
An

ar
ea

of
w
oo
dl
an
d
sc
ru
b
(u
nd
er
th
e
ex
iti
ng

tre
e
ca
no
py
)t
o
be

re
ta
in
ed

an
d

en
ha
nc
ed

w
ith
pl
ug

sp
ec
ie
s:
H
ay

M
ea
do
w
Ar
ea

40
Pl
ug

Pl
an
tM

ix

•
Th
e
pr
op
os
ed

he
dg
er
ow

sp
ec
ie
s
w
ill
be

en
ha
nc
ed

w
ith

‘s
tru
ct
ur
al
pl
an
tin
g’
th
at

w
ill
in
cl
ud
e
be
ec
h,
ho
rn
be
am

an
d
ro
w
an

sp
ec
ie
s

•
Al
ll
ar
ge

tre
es

an
d
he
dg
in
g
pl
an
ts
w
ill
be

re
pl
ac
ed

w
ith
si
m
ila
rs
iz
es
an
d

sp
ec
ie
s
if
th
ey
fa
il
w
ith
in
5
ye
ar
s
of
pl
an
tin
g.

•
W
oo
d
fro
m
th
e
fe
lle
d
tre
es

w
ill
be

st
ac
ke
d
to
fo
rm

bu
g
ho
te
ls
.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 55



A
pr
e-
de
ve
lo
pm

en
tT
re
e
Su
rv
ey
&
Ar
bo
ric
ul
tu
ra
lR
ep
or
tw
as
ca
rri
ed

ou
tb
y
Sh
ar
pl
es
Tr
ee

Se
rv
ic
es

in
O
ct
ob
er
20
22
.P
le
as
e
re
fe
rt
o
th
is
do
cu
m
en
tf
or
in
fo
rm
at
io
n
re
la
te
d

to
th
e
m
et
ho
do
lo
gy
ca
rri
ed

ou
ti
n
ac
co
rd
an
ce
w
ith
BS

58
37

Tr
ee
s
in
re
la
tio
n
to
de
si
gn
,d
em

ol
iti
on

an
d
co
ns
tru
ct
io
n.

Ex
tra
ct
s
of
th
e
Sh
ar
pl
es

re
po
rt
co
ve
rin
g
th
e
po
ol
pr
op
os
ed

ar
ea

is
sh
ow
n
ab
ov
e.

Ba
se
d
on

th
e
in
te
nd
ed

po
ol
lo
ca
tio
n
it
is
pr
op
os
ed

to
re
m
ov
e
Tr
ee
s
4
(s
yc
am

or
e)
5
(S
ilv
er
Bi
rc
h)
7
(H
ol
ly
)1
6
(M
on
te
re
y
Pi
ne
)t
o
en
ab
le
co
ns
tru
ct
io
n.

Tr
ee

2
(M
ag
no
lia
)a
nd

Tr
ee

3
(A
sh
)a
re
id
en
tifi
ed

fo
rr
em

ov
al
to
m
ak
e
w
ay
fo
rt
he

co
ns
tru
ct
io
n
an
d
du
e
to
th
e
th
re
at
of
As
h
di
e
ba
ck
.A
ll
re
m
ov
ed

tre
es

w
ill
be

re
pl
ac
ed

w
ith
su
ita
bl
e
sp
ec
ie
s
an
d
si
ze
s.

Pr
e-
de
ve
lo
pm

en
tT
re
e
Su
rv
ey

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 56



8

5

3

17

12

5

3

14

18

14

16

13

15

15

4

5

6

7
8

9

10

1211

1

2

5

3

3

4

La
nd
sc
ap
e
M
as
te
rp
la
n

LE
G
EN
D

1
G
ra
ve
la
rri
va
la
nd

pa
rk
in
g
ar
ea

2
Pr
op
os
ed

po
ol

3
Tr
ee
s
to
be

re
m
ov
ed

(d
as
he
d
lin
e)

4
Tr
ee
s
to
be

re
ta
in
ed

(s
ol
id
gr
ee
n)

5
Pr
op
os
ed

ca
no
py

tre
e

6
Pr
op
os
ed

na
tiv
e
tre
e
pl
an
ta
tio
n

7
Pr
op
os
ed

na
tiv
e
sh
ru
b
un
de
rs
to
ry
pl
an
tin
g

8
Pr
op
os
ed

sh
ru
b
pl
an
tin
g

9
Pr
op
os
ed

na
tiv
e
he
dg
er
ow

10
Ex
is
tin
g
he
dg
er
ow

11
Pr
op
os
ed

he
dg
er
ow

12
Pr
op
os
ed

st
on
e
w
al
l

13
Pr
op
os
ed

gr
ou
nd

co
ve
rs
,p
er
en
ni
al
s
an
d
se
ed
in
g

14
Pr
op
os
ed

st
on
e
pa
vi
ng

ar
ea

15
Pr
op
os
ed

gr
av
el
pa
th
w
ay
s

16
Pr
op
os
ed

ar
ea

of
w
oo
dl
an
d
ed
ge

se
ed

m
ix

17
Pr
op
os
ed

ar
ea

of
w
oo
dl
an
d
sc
ru
b
en
ha
nc
em

en
ti
nc
lu
di
ng

w
ild
flo
w
er
pl
ug

an
d
bu
lb
pl
an
tin
g

18
Po
ol
pl
an
th
ou
si
ng

an
d
pu
m
p
un
it

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 57



In
di
ca
tiv
e
Tr
ee
Pl
an
tin
g

Po
ol

Pr
op
os
ed

ca
no
py

tr
ee
s

Pr
op
os
ed

na
tiv
e

tr
ee
pl
an
ta
tio
n

Tr
ee
s
re
ta
in
ed

N
at
iv
e
tr
ee
pl
an
tin
g

R
oo
tb
al
le
d
/H
al
fs
ta
nd
ar
ds

/a
pp
ro
x.

14
-1
6c
m
gi
rt
hs

Q
ue
rc
us
ro
bu
r(
as

av
ai
la
bl
e)

Fa
gu
s
sy
lv
at
ic
a

So
rb
us
ar
ia

Ac
er
ca
m
pe
st
re

U
nd
er
st
or
y
tr
ee

(p
la
nt
ed

in
ga
ps

in
ex
is
tin
g
ca
no
py
)

R
oo
tb
al
le
d
/M
ul
ti-
st
em

m
ed

/a
pp
ro
x.
2-
3m

he
ig
ht

Be
tu
la
pu
be
sc
en
s

C
an
op
y
tr
ee
pl
an
tin
g

R
oo
tb
al
le
d
/S
ta
nd
ar
ds

/a
pp
ro
x.
18
-2
0c
m

gi
rt
hs

Pa
rro
tia

pe
rs
ic
a

C
or
nu
s
Ko
us
a

Pr
un
us
ce
er
as
ife
ra
‘H
es
se
i’

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 58



In
di
ca
tiv
e
sp
ec
im
en

sh
ru
b
an
d
se
ed
in
g

A
m
en
ity

gr
as
sl
an
d

se
ed
in
g

W
oo
dl
an
d
ed
ge

se
ed
in
g

W
oo
dl
an
d
sc
ru
b

se
ed
in
g

G
ar
de
n
sh
ru
bs

G
ar
de
n
sh
ru
bs

W
oo
dl
an
d
sh
ru
bs

Sp
ec
im
en

sh
ru
b
pl
an
tin
g

W
oo
dl
an
d
sh
ru
bs

Ta
xu
s
ba
cc
at
a

C
or
nu
s
sa
ng
ui
ne
a

C
or
yl
us
av
el
la
na

C
ar
pi
nu
s
be
tu
lu
s

C
ra
ta
eg
us
la
ev
ig
at
a

O
sm
an
th
us

x
bi
rk
w
oo
di
i

G
ar
de
n
sh
ru
bs

Vi
bu
rn
um

tin
us

R
os
a
ba
lle
rin
a

H
yd
ra
ng
ea

m
yc
ro
ph
yl
la

H
eb
e
M
id
su
m
m
er
Be
au
ty

Eu
on
ym
us
ja
po
ni
cu
s
‘J
ea
n
H
ug
he
s’

W
ild
flo
w
er
an
d
ec
ol
og
ic
al
se
ed
in
g

W
oo
dl
an
d
sc
ru
b
(u
nd
er
th
e
ex
iti
ng

tre
e
ca
no
py
)t
o

be
en
ha
nc
ed

w
ith
pl
ug

pl
an
tin
g:
H
ay

M
ea
do
w
Ar
ea

40
Pl
ug

Pl
an
tM

ix

N
ew

w
ild
flo
w
er
ar
ea
s:
EM

5
M
ea
do
w
M
ix
an
d
EL
1

M
od
ifi
ed

G
ra
ss
Se
ed

M
ix
@
4g
ra
m
s
/m
2

W
oo
dl
an
d
ed
ge

m
ea
do
w
se
ed

m
ix
:3
0%

na
tiv
e

w
ild
flo
w
er
se
ed

/7
0%

ce
rti
fie
d
gr
as
se
s:

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 59



In
di
ca
tiv
e
he
dg
e
pl
an
tin
g

N
at
iv
e
he
dg
e

G
ar
de
n
he
dg
e

H
ed
ge
ro
w
pl
an
tin
g

N
at
iv
e
he
dg
e

B
ar
e
ro
ot
12
0c
m
he
ig
ht

60
%

C
ra
ta
eg
us

la
ev
ig
at
a

5%
Ac
er
ca
m
ps
tre

5%
C
ar
pi
nu
s
be
tu
lu
s

3%
So
rb
us

au
cu
pa
ria

2%
Fa
gu
s
sy
lv
at
ic
a

10
%

R
os
a
ca
ni
na

10
%

C
or
yl
us

av
el
la
na

G
ar
de
n
he
dg
e

R
oo
tb
al
le
d
90
-1
20
cm

he
ig
ht

Ta
xu
s
ba
cc
at
a

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 60



In
di
ca
tiv
e
gr
as
s
sp
ec
ie
s

G
ra
ss
sp
ec
ie
s
pl
an
tin
g

Th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
gr
as
s
sp
ec
ie
s
ar
e
su
gg
es
te
d
fo
rb
ot
h
ye
ar

ro
un
d
am

en
ity
va
lu
e
an
d
fo
rw
ha
tt
he
y
off
er
w
ild
lif
e

pa
rti
cu
la
rly
pr
ov
id
in
g
fo
od

an
d
sh
el
te
rf
or
ga
rd
en

w
ild
lif
e.

Pr
ov
id
in
g
ha
bi
ta
tf
or
in
se
ct
s,
se
ed
s
an
d
ne
st
in
g
m
at
er
ia
l

fo
rb
ird
s
an
d
at
tra
ct
in
g
bu
tte
rfl
ie
s
an
d
sm
al
lm
am

m
al
s

su
ch
as

he
dg
eh
og
s.

G
ra
ss
sp
ec
ie
s
in
cl
ud
e:

C
ar
ex
os
hi
m
en
si
s
‘E
ve
rg
ol
d’

C
al
am

ag
ro
tis
‘K
ar
lF
or
es
te
r’

Fe
st
uc
a
gl
au
ca

H
ak
on
en
ch
ol
a
m
ac
ra

M
is
ca
nt
hu
s
si
ne
ns
is

Pe
nn
is
et
um

al
pe
cu
ro
id
es

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 61



D
A

N
D

O
s
u

r
v
e

y
i
n

g
 
l
t
d R
ev

D
at

e:
Sc

al
e:

C
lie

nt
:

D
ra

w
in

g 
Ti

tle
:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

G
rid

 O
rie

nt
at

io
n

Si
te

 L
ev

el
 D

at
um

Sh
ee

t I
D

A
ge

nt
:

2
7
-
2
9
 
N

e
w

 
S

t
r
e
e
t

C
h
a
r
f
i
e
l
d

S
o
u
t
h
 
G

l
o
s
.

 
w

w
w

.
d
a
n
d
o
s
u
r
v
e
y
i
n
g
.
c
o
.
u
k

e
n
q
u
i
r
i
e
s
@

d
a
n
d
o
s
u
r
v
e
y
i
n
g
.
c
o
.
u
k

G
L
1
2
 
8
E

S

T
e
l
:
 
 
0
1
4
5
3
 
8
4
5
0
1
7

L
a
n
d
 
&

 
M

e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 
B

u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
o
r
s

Su
rv

ey
ed

 B
y

D
ra

w
n 

B
y

T
e
l
:
 
 
0
1
4
5
3
 
8
4
5
3
6
0

F
U

L
L
 
M

E
M

B
E

R

e
m

p
o

w
e

r
e

d
 
b

y
 
A

c
h
i
l
l
e
s

R
e

e
g

i
s
t

e
d

r

SA
FE

TY
SC

H
EM

ES
 IN

PR
O

C
U

R
EM

EN
T

W
O
r
k
s
a
f
e

c
o
n
s
u

t
n

a
t
l

a
s
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
s
e
d
 
b
y

T
o

p
o

g
r
a

p
h

i
c
a

l
 
S

u
r
v
e

y

4
t
h

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r
 
2

0
2

1
1

:
2

0
0

 
@

 
A

1

N
o

r
t
h

 
G

P
S

O
S

 
G

P
S

M
F

p
i
n

n
s
f
a

r
m

T
O

P
O

N
o
n
e

F
o

w
l
e

r
 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
u

r
e

 
a

n
d

 
P

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

P
i
n

n
s
 
F

a
r
m

F
o

x
e

s
 
L

a
n

e
,
 
W

e
s
t
 
W

e
l
l
o

w
,
 
R

o
m

s
e

y
,
 
S

O
5

1
 
6

D
S

D
W

D
W

C
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e

 
S

y
s
t
e

m

T
h
i
s
 
s
u
r
v
e
y
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
o
r
i
e
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
O

.
S

.
 
N

a
t
i
o
n
a
l

G
r
i
d
 
(
O

S
G

B
3
6
)
 
v
i
a
 
a
 
g
l
o
b
a
l
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
s
y
s
t
e
m

 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e

O
.
S

.
 
A

c
t
i
v
e
 
N

e
t
w

o
r
k
 
(
O

S
 
N

e
t
)
 
O

S
G

B
3
6
.
 
T

r
u
e

O
S

G
B

3
6
 
c
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
a
t

a
n
d
 
a
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 
O

S
B

G
3
6
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
 
a

t
r
u
e
 
O

.
S

.
 
b
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
g
l
e
 
o
r
i
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
A

l
l
 
l
e
v
e
l
s
 
a
r
e

b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
O

.
S

.
D

a
t
u
m

.
 
A

 
s
c
a
l
e
 
f
a
c
t
o
r
 
o
f
 
1
:
1
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n

a
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
r
v
e
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e

s
y
s
t
e
m

 
m

u
s
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
a
r
b
i
t
r
a
r
y
.

S
T

N
2

E
4
2
9
6
3
3
.
5
7
4
 
N

1
2
0
7
6
8
.
3
5
6
 
E

L
E

V
3
4
.
4
0
3

F
r
o

m
 
S

u
r
f
a

c
e

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e

W
a
l
l

T
r
a
c
k
/
P

a
t
h

V
e
r
g
e

W
a
t
e
r
 
l
i
n
e

E
s
t
i
m

a
t
e

d
 
S

i
z
e

 

F
r
o

m
 
S

u
r
f
a

c
e

S
W

S
 

M
a
n
h
o
l
e

P
i
p
e

K
e
r
b

H
e
d
g
e

G
r
i
d
 
C

r
o
s
s

L
i
n
e
t
y
p
e
s

E
s
t
i
m

a
t
e

d
 
S

i
z
e

 

F
W

S

F
o
l
i
a
g
e

F
e
n
c
e

E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c

B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

B
a
n
k

C
h
a
n
n
e
l

T
r
e
e
 
C

a
n
o
p
y

R
i
d
g
e

D
r
o
p
 
k
e
r
b

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
G

a
t
e
s
 
 

U
n
a
b
l
e
 
T

o
 
L
i
f
t

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
P

o
l
e

T
h
r
e
s
h
o
l
d
 
L
e
v
e
l

M
a
n
h
o
l
e
 
C

o
v
e
r

E
V

E
a
v
e
s
 
L
e
v
e
l
 
(
u
/
s
 
f
a
s
c
i
a
)

R
o
a
d
 
S

i
g
n

R
S

B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&

 
W

a
l
l
s

G
l
a
s
s
 
R

o
o
f
e
d

I
n
v
e
r
t
 
L
e
v
e
l

I
n
s
p
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r

G
a
s
 
V

a
l
v
e

G
a
t
e
 
P

o
s
t

F
e
n
c
e
 
P

o
s
t

F
l
o
o
r
 
L
e
v
e
l

F
i
r
e
 
H

y
d
r
a
n
t

G
P

i
l

I
C

G
V

GF
P

F
L

F
H

G
u
l
l
y

S
i
n
g
l
e
 
G

a
t
e
 

W
O

W
M

U
T

L

T
P

T
H

S
V

S
t
r

S
C

W
a
s
h
 
O

u
t

W
a
t
e
r
 
M

e
t
e
r

S
t
o
p
 
C

o
c
k

S
t
r
a
i
n
e
r

S
t
o
p
 
V

a
l
v
e

E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
 
P

o
w

e
r
 
P

o
l
e

C
o
v
e
r
 
L
e
v
e
l

C
a
b
l
e
 
T

e
l
e
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
C

o
v
e
r

B
o
u
n
d
a
r
y
 
P

o
i
n
t

B
e
n
c
h
 
M

a
r
k

B
P

C
A

T
V

E
P

c
l

B
T

B
T

 
C

o
v
e
r

B
L

B
M

A
V

A
i
r
 
V

a
l
v
e

B
o
l
l
a
r
d

K
e
y

R
G

M
S

M
K

M
H

L
a
m

p
 
P

o
s
t

ML
P

M
e
t
e
r

R
i
d
g
e
 
L
e
v
e
l

M
i
l
e
s
t
o
n
e

M
a
r
k
e
r

K
e
r
b
 
O

u
t
l
e
t

K
O

R
a
i
n
 
W

a
t
e
r
 
P

i
p
e

r
w

p

s
v
p

S
o
i
l
 
V

e
n
t
 
P

i
p
e

C
a
b
i
n
e
t

c
a
b

V
e
n
t
 
P

i
p
e

V
P

T
r
a
f
f
i
c
 
L
i
g
h
t

T
L

F
o
u
l
 
W

a
t
e
r
 
S

e
w

e
r

F
W

S

S
W

S
S

t
o
r
m

 
W

a
t
e
r
 
S

e
w

e
r

Y
E

W
Y

e
w

b
e
e
n
 
s
u
r
v
e
y
e
d
 
b
y
 
r
e
m

o
t
e
 
m

e
t
h
o
d
s

T
r
e
e
 
D

i
m

e
n
s
i
o
n
s
 
(
a
v
e
r
a
g
e
)

a
n
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
&

 
d
i
m

e
n
s
i
o
n
s
 
c
a
n
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
g
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
d
.

T
r
e
e
s
 
d
e
n
o
t
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
"
a
p
p
r
o
x
"
 
h
a
v
e

S
p
r
e
a
d
/
T

r
u
n
k
 
D

i
a
/
H

e
i
g
h
t

O
v
e
r
a
l
l
 
d
i
a
.
 
s
h
o
w

n

M
u
l
t
i
p
l
e
 
s
t
e
m

s
/
t
r
u
n
k
s

*
*
M

B

T
r
e

e
 
A

b
b

r
e

v
i
a

t
i
o

n
s

W
e
e
p
i
n
g
 
W

i
l
l
o
w

H
o
r
s
e
 
C

h
e
s
t
n
u
t

C
o
p
p
e
r
 
B

e
e
c
h

A
S

H
A

s
h

F
R

F
r
u
i
t

L
a
b
u
r
n
u
m

H
a
w

t
h
o
r
n

H
a
z
e
l

H
o
l
l
y

L
A

B

H
A

Z
 

H
C

 

H
O

L

H
A

W

E
u
c
a
l
y
p
t
u
s

B
e
e
c
h

C
o
n
i
f
e
r
o
u
s

B
E

E

C
B

E
U

C

C
O

N

O
a
k

O
A

K

S
P

W
P

W
I
L
L

W
A

L

S
Y

C

S
B

 

R
W

R
M

P
O

P

S
c
o
t
s
 
P

i
n
e

W
i
l
l
o
w

W
a
l
n
u
t

S
y
c
a
m

o
r
e

S
i
l
v
e
r
 
B

i
r
c
h

R
e
d
 
M

a
p
l
e

R
e
d
w

o
o
d

P
o
p
l
a
r

S
E

R
S

e
r
v
i
c
e
 
T

r
e
e

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
H

E

B
a
y

B
A

Y
M

a
p
l
e

M
A

P

L
o
n
d
o
n
 
P

l
a
n
e

L
P

L
i
m

e
L
I

L
a
u
r
e
l

L
A

U

C
e
d
a
r

C
E

D

A
S

 
-
 
A

s
 
s
h
o
w

n
 
b
y
 
r
e
d
 
l
i
n
e

U
T

S
 
-
 
U

n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
s
u
r
v
e
y

O
S

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 4 July 2023

Page 62

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
N120750

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
N120750

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
N120775

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
N120775

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
N120800

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
N120800

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
N120825

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
N120825

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
E429600

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
E429600

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
E429625

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
E429625

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
E429650

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
E429650

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
E429675

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
E429675

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
E429700

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
E429700

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
E429725

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
E429725

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
E429750

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
STN2

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
429633.574

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
120768.356

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
34.403

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
STN1

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
429678.476

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
120787.756

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
35.123

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
STN1D

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
429685.393

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
120735.389

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
35.009

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
STN2D

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
429612.197

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
120792.143

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
33.751

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
STN3D

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
429653.117

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
120798.607

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
32.744

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
34.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
34.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
34.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
34.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
34.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
34.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
34.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
34.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
34.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
34.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
34.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
34.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
34.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
34.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
34.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
34.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
34.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
34.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
34.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
35.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
35.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
35.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
34.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
34.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
34.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
34.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
34.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
34.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
36.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
34.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
34.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
34.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
34.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
34.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
3/.1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
3/.1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
3/.1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
34.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
34.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
34.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
34.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
34.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
34.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
34.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
34.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
34.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
34.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
34.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
34.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
34.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
34.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
34.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
34.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
34.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
34.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
33.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
34.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
34.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
34.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
34.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
34.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
34.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
34.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
34.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
34.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
34.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
34.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
34.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
34.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
Beech hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
34.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
34.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
34.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
33.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Grass & concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
33.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
34.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
34.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
34.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
33.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
33.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
34.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
34.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
34.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
34.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
34.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
34.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
34.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
34.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
34.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
BEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
AS/.4/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
36.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
35.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
35.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
35.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
35.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
35.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
35.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
35.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Close board fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
35.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
35.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
35.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
35.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
34.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
34.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
35.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
STN4D

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
429632.396

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
120829.732

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
32.749

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
33.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
33.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
33.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
34.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
34.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
34.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
33.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
34.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
34.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
33.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
33.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
33.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
33.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
33.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
33.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
33.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
33.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
33.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
33.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
33.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
33.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
Ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
39.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
36.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
STN5D

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
429679.296

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
120830.290

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
31.233

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
32.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
32.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
32.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
32.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
32.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
32.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
33.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
33.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
32.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
33.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
33.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
33.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
33.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
33.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
33.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
33.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
33.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
33.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
33.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
33.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
32.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
32.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
32.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
32.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
31.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
31.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
32.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
32.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
32.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
32.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
3/.15/6

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
3/.15/9

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
3/.15/9

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
STN6D

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
429710.094

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
120820.929

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
31.202

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
31.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
31.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
31.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
31.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
31.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
31.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
31.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
31.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
31.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
31.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
31.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
31.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
30.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
31.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
31.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
31.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Barbed wire fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
32.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
31.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
31.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
31.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
31.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
31.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
33.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
32.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
32.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
32.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
32.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
32.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
32.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
32.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
32.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
33.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
33.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
34.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
Cable height

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
38.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
8/.2/8

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
8/.2/8

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
6/.15/8

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
AS/.5/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
31.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
31.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
31.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
32.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
32.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
33.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
31.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
31.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
31.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
31.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
31.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
32.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
32.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
33.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
34.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
34.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
35.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
35.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
35.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
36.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Metal railing fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
Tree top

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
34.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
Tree top

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
33.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
HAW

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
5/.2/8

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
33.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
33.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
33.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
34.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
33.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
33.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
33.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Stone wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
33.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
33.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
33.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
33.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
33.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
32.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
32.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
33.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
33.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
32.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
33.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
33.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
32.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
33.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
33.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
33.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
33.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
33.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
33.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
Base of building

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
34.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
34.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
34.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
34.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
34.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
34.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
34.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
33.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
33.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
33.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
33.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
33.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
33.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
34.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
34.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
34.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
34.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
34.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
34.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
34.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
34.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
34.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
34.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
34.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
34.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
34.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
32.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
33.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
Concrete wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
33.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
33.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
33.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
33.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
34.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
34.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
34.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
34.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
33.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
33.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
34.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
33.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
33.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
33.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
33.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
33.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
33.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
33.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
33.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
33.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
33.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
33.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
33.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
32.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
33.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
33.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
32.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
32.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
32.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
32.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
32.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
32.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
32.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
32.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
33.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
32.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
32.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
33.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
32.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
32.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Clay pipe .15%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
32.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
32.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
32.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
32.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
32.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
32.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
32.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
32.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
33.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
33.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
Brash

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
32.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
32.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
32.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
32.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
33.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
33.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
33.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
34.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
34.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
33.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
33.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
33.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
34.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
34.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Log stack

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
33.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
33.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
33.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
33.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
34.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
34.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
CHE

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
AS/.3/11

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Mixed hedges & brambles 3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
Concrete pillars 1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
STN3

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
429670.728

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
120812.785

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
32.958

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
STN4

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
429682.952

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
120800.218

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
34.534

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
STN5

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
429696.187

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
120793.309

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
35.092

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
STN6

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
429679.478

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
120769.572

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
35.954

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
35.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
35.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
35.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
35.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
35.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
35.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
35.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
34.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
34.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
34.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
34.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
34.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
35.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
35.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
35.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
35.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
35.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
35.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
35.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
34.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
34.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
34.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
34.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
34.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
34.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
Mixed hedges 2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
Box hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
34.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
34.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Grass & concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
34.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
34.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
35.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
35.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
35.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
35.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
35.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
35.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
35.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
cl

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
35.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
35.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
35.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
34.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
34.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
34.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
34.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
34.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
Conifer hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
Mixed bushes 4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
34.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
34.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
34.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
34.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
34.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
34.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
34.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
34.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
34.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
34.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
34.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
34.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
34.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
34.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
34.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
35.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
35.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
35.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
35.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
35.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
35.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
35.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
34.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
34.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
34.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
35.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
35.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
35.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
35.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
35.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
35.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
35.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
35.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
35.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
35.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
34.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
35.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
34.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
34.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
34.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
34.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
34.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
34.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
34.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
34.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
34.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
34.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
34.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
AS/.3/7

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
SYC

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
AS/.4/17

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
AS/.4/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
AS/.7/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
37.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
37.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
Ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
39.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
35.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
35.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
35.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
35.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
35.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
35.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
34.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
34.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
37.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
40.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
Ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
38.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
Cable height

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
41.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
Cable height

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
41.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
STN7

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
429690.256

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
120811.806

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
33.158

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
STN8

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
429709.115

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
120789.707

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
34.827

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
35.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
35.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
35.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
35.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
34.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
34.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
34.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
34.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
34.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
34.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
34.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
34.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
37.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
Conifer hedge 2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
Oil

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
34.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
33.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
33.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
33.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
33.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
33.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
32.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
32.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
32.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
32.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
32.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
32.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
32.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
32.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
32.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
32.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
32.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
33.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
Courugated metal

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
33.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
33.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
33.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
33.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Laurel hedge 3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
33.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
33.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
33.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
34.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
CON

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
10/.4/17

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
SYC

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
AS/.3/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
AS/.4/7

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
CON

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
10/.4/15

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
CON

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
15/.8/22

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
STN9

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
429711.557

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
120773.820

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
35.929

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
Tap

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
35.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
35.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
34.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
34.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
33.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
3/.1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
33.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
34.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
34.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
34.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
34.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
34.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
34.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
33.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
33.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
34.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
34.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
35.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
35.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
35.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
35.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
35.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
35.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
35.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
35.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
35.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
35.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
34.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
34.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
34.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
37.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
41.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
40.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
Ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
Mixed hedges &

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
Holly bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
FRU

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
AS/.3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
SYC

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
AS/.7/22

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
Mixed hedge 2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
STN10

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
429697.809

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
120772.809

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
35.923

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
STN11

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
429710.483

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
120758.593

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
36.226

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
36.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
35.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
35.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
35.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
36.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
35.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
35.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
Soil

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
35.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
35.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
35.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
35.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
35.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
36.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
35.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
35.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
35.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
35.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
36.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
36.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
8/.2/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
BEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
3/.1/2

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
FRU

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
5/.2/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
FRU

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
8/.3/8

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
AS/.45/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
35.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
35.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
STN12

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
429695.245

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
120755.838

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
36.237

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
36.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
STUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
36.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
36.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
36.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
36.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
36.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
Conifer hedge 1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
36.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
36.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
36.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
36.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
36.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
36.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
36.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
36.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
36.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
Bush

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
BEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
AS/.5/16

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
BEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
AS/.4/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
8/.2/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
35.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
35.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
35.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
35.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
35.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
35.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
35.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
35.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
35.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
35.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
35.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
35.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
35.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
35.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
35.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
35.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
35.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
35.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
35.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
35.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
35.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
35.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
35.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
35.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
35.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
35.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
35.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
35.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
35.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
35.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
35.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
35.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
35.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
35.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
35.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
Conifer hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
Conc

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
35.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
36.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
36.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
36.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
36.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
35.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
AS/.15/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
41.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
37.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
37.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
Tree top

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
39.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
35.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
35.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
35.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
35.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
35.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
35.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
STUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
35.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
35.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
STUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
35.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
35.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
35.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
CHE

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
AS/.3/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
CHE

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
4/.15/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
35.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
35.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
36.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
35.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
35.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
36.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
35.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
35.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
Slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
35.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
35.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
35.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
35.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
35.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
36.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
36.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
35.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
35.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
36.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
36.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
36.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
36.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
36.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
36.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
36.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
36.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
36.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
STUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
CON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
3/.15/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
36.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
36.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
36.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
CON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
1.5/.1/2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
36.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
36.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
36.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
36.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
36.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
36.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
36.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
36.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
36.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
36.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
36.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
36.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
36.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
36.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
36.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
36.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
36.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
2/.1/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
35.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
35.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
36.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
36.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
36.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
36.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
36.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
36.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
36.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
AS/.4/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
36.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
36.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
36.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
36.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
35.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
36.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
36.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
36.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
36.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
36.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
36.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
36.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
36.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
36.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
36.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
36.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
36.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
AS/.3/7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
5/.15/8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
3/.1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
AS/.5/16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
AS/.7/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
8/.2/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
CHE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
7/.15/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
4/.15/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
CHE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
10/.4/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
41.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
45.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
35.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
35.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
35.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
35.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
35.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
35.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
35.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
35.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
35.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
35.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
35.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
35.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
35.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
35.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
35.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
35.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
35.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
35.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
35.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
TH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
35.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
35.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
35.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
35.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
35.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
35.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
35.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
35.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
35.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
36.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
36.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
36.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
36.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
36.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
36.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
35.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
35.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
35.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
35.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
35.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
35.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
35.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
35.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
35.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
35.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
35.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
35.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
35.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
35.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
Wire fence 1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
35.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
36.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
36.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
36.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
36.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
36.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
35.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
35.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
35.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
35.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
35.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
35.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
35.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
35.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
35.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
35.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
35.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
35.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
35.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
35.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
35.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
35.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
35.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
35.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
35.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
35.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
35.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
Laurel hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
Laurel hedge 1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
AS/.3/9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
AS/.2/9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
rwp

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
AS/.15/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
SYC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
AS/.5/14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
3/.1/3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
2/.05/2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
41.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
Last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
38.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
Lean to height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
39.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
35.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
35.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
35.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
35.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
35.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
35.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
35.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
35.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
35.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
36.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
35.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
35.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
36.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
36.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
36.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
36.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
35.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
35.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
35.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
Laurel hedge 3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
33.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
33.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
33.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
33.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
34.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
33.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
33.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
33.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
33.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
32.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
32.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
32.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
32.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
32.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
32.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
32.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
32.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
32.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
32.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
33.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
33.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
33.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
33.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
33.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
33.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
Brambles & scrub 1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
32.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
32.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
Scale   1 : 200

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
Mixed hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
il

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
CHE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
Slabs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
Step

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
level

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
.1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
.1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
Conifer hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
Bushes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
Bushes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
Conifer hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
Conifer hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
1.8m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
Mixed hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
Conifer hedge 1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
Metal railing fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
Metal railing fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
Mixed hedges & brambles 4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
Mixed hedges & brambles 4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
brambles 4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
Mixed hedges &

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
brambles 4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
Barbed wire fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
Brambles & scrub 1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
Brambles & scrub 1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
Brambles & scrub 1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
Brambles & scrub 1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
Laurel hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
Courugated metal

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
33.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
.3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
Stone wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
.3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
Mixed hedges & brambles 3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
Mixed hedges & brambles 3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
Mixed hedges & brambles 3m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
1.8m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
Mixed hedges 1.6m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
Mixed hedges 1.8m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
Box hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
Box hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
Metal border

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
Metal border

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
Metal border

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
Metal border

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
Mixed plants & bushes 2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
Mixed hedge 2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
Mixed hedge 2.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
Laurel hedge 1.5m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
Stock proof fence 1.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
Plants

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
.2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
Shrubs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
FOXES LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
FOXES LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
FOXES LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
Concrete & scrub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
Concrete & scrub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
Concrete & scrub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
Concrete & scrub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
Grass & concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
Grass & concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
Saddle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
33.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
36.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
36.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
34.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
35.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
36.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
36.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
36.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
38.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
38.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
39.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
39.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
39.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
39.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
37.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
37.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
34.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
34.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
34.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
34.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
35.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
35.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
35.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
36.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
36.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
36.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
37.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
37.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
36.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
36.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
36.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
36.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
36.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
36.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
36.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
36.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
roof edge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
35.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
35.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
36.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
35.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
36.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
37.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
37.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
38.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
last tile

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
38.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
ridge height

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
39.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
Log stack

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
2m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
Brambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
Brick walls

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
1m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
34.08


	Agenda
	6 Information Notes
	TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE
	INFORMATION NOTES
	Availability of Background Papers
	Reasons for Committee Consideration
	Public Speaking at the Meeting
	Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions
	Conditions and Reasons for Refusal
	Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation
	Deferred Applications
	Visual Display of Plans and Photographs
	Human Rights
	The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR.
	Other Legislation

	7 22/03317/FULLS - 03.01.2023
	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	Sheets and Views
	20220 Planning Plans 24.05.2023-06 Proposed Site Layout Plan


	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	Sheets and Views
	20220 Planning Plans 24.05.2023-05 Proposed Site Plan


	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 5
	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 6
	Sheets and Views
	20220 Planning Plans 17.12.22-10 Proposed G Floor Plans Plots 1&2


	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 7
	Sheets and Views
	20220 Planning Plans 06.12.22-15 Proposed F Floor Plans Plots 1&2


	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 8
	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 9
	Sheets and Views
	20220 Planning Plans 17.12.22-25 Proposed Floor Plans Plot 3


	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 10
	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 11
	22_03317_FULLS SAPC Plan 12

	8 23/00867/FULLS - 29.03.2023
	23_00867_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	23_00867_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	23_00867_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	23_00867_FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	23_00867_FULLS SAPC Plan 5
	Sheets and Views
	Model






